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This Prospectus comprises a prospectus for the purposes of Article 5 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the
Prospectus Directive).

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of the
knowledge of the Issuer (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information
contained in this Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the
import of such information.

The Issuer, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirms that this Prospectus contains all material
information with respect to the Issuer and the Notes (including all information which, according to the
particular nature of the Issuer and of the Notes, is necessary to enable investors to make an informed
assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses and prospects of the Issuer and
of the rights attaching to the Notes), that the information contained or incorporated in this Prospectus is true
and accurate in all material respects and is not misleading, that the opinions and intentions expressed in this
Prospectus are honestly held and that there are no other facts the omission of which would make this
Prospectus or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading. The
Issuer accepts responsibility accordingly.

Save for the Issuer, no party has independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no
representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability is
accepted by the Joint Lead Managers as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or
incorporated in this Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuer in connection with the
offering of the Notes. No Joint Lead Manager accepts any liability in relation to the information contained
or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus or any other information provided by the Issuer in connection
with the offering of the Notes or their distribution.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuer to give any information or to make any representation not
contained in or not consistent with this Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the
offering of the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as
having been authorised by the Issuer or any of the Joint Lead Managers.

Neither this Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the offering of the Notes (a)
is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be considered as a
recommendation by the Issuer or any of the Joint Lead Managers that any recipient of this Prospectus or any
other information supplied in connection with the offering of the Notes should purchase any Notes. Each
investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent investigation of the financial
condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer. Neither this Prospectus nor
any other information supplied in connection with the offering of the Notes constitutes an offer or invitation
by or on behalf of the Issuer or any of the Joint Lead Managers to any person to subscribe for or to purchase
any Notes.

Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor the offering, sale or delivery of the Notes shall in any
circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuer is correct at any time
subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with the offering of the
Notes is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The
Joint Lead Managers expressly do not undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer
during the life of the Notes or to advise any investor in the Notes of any information coming to their
attention. The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, (the Securities Act) and are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions,
the Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons. For a further
description of certain restrictions on the offering and sale of the Notes and on distribution of this document,
see “Subscription and Sale” below.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy the Notes in any
jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The
distribution of this Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions.
The Issuer and the Joint Lead Managers do not represent that this Prospectus may be lawfully distributed,



or that the Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other
requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any
responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken by the
Issuer or the Joint Lead Managers which is intended to permit a public offering of the Notes or the
distribution of this Prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no
Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Prospectus nor any advertisement or
other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that
will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession this
Prospectus or any Notes may come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the
distribution of this Prospectus and the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the
distribution of this Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes in the United States, the United Kingdom and
the Republic of Estonia; see “Subscription and Sale”.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF THE NOTES, DEUTSCHE BANK AG, LONDON
BRANCH AS STABILISING MANAGER (THE STABILISING MANAGER) (OR PERSONS
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE STABILISING MANAGER) MAY OVER ALLOT NOTES OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WITH A VIEW TO SUPPORTING THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
NOTES AT A LEVEL HIGHER THAN THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL.
HOWEVER, THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THAT THE STABILISING MANAGER (OR PERSONS
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE STABILISING MANAGER) WILL UNDERTAKE
STABILISATION ACTION. ANY STABILISATION ACTION MAY BEGIN ON OR AFTER THE
DATE ON WHICH ADEQUATE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF THE TERMS OF THE OFFER OF
THE NOTES IS MADE AND, IF BEGUN, MAY BE ENDED AT ANY TIME, BUT IT MUST END
NO LATER THAN THE EARLIER OF 30 DAYS AFTER THE ISSUE DATE OF THE NOTES AND
60 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF THE ALLOTMENT OF THE NOTES. ANY STABILISATION
ACTION OR OVER-ALLOTMENT MUST BE CONDUCTED BY THE STABILISING MANAGER
(OR PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE STABILISING MANAGER) IN ACCORDANCE
WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND RULES.

All references in this document to (a) euro and € refer to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage
of European economic and monetary union, as defined in Article 2 of Council Regulation (EC) No. 974/98
of 3 May 1998, on the introduction of the euro, as amended and (b) EEK and Estonian Kroon are to the
lawful currency of the Republic of Estonia prior to the adoption of the euro on 1 January 2011.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This Prospectus presents audited financial statements of the Issuer as at and for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 31 December 2009 (the Financial Statements) prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Certain arithmetical data presented in the Prospectus, including financial and operating information, has
been subject to rounding. Accordingly, in certain instances, the sum of the numbers in a column or a row in
tables in the Prospectus may not conform exactly to the total figure given.



RISK FACTORS

The Issuer believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes.
Most of these factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and the Issuer is not in a position to
express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with the
Notes are described below.

The Issuer believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the
Notes, but the inability of the Issuer to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection with the
Notes may occur for other reasons which may not be considered significant risks by the Issuer based on
information currently available to it or which it may not currently be able to anticipate. Prospective investors
should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Prospectus and reach their own views
prior to making any investment decision.

Factors that may affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under or in connection with the Notes
Risk of fluctuating revenues / unanticipated increase in costs or decrease in income

As almost all of the costs of the Company are fixed costs (i.e. they are not dependent on the volumes of
transmitted electricity), the Company is especially vulnerable to any decline in revenues. The occurrence of
any such decline would result in the corresponding reduction of net profit.

Network tariffs are calculated based on the forecasted amount of transmitted energy. In the periods when the
economy is declining, the amount of actual transmitted energy may fall short of the forecasted amount,
resulting in decreased revenue.

Currently, nearly 100 per cent. of the tariffs are based on domestic consumption, which is more stable than
cross border transmission. However, there is no guarantee that tariffs will continue to be based on domestic
consumption in the future. As revenues are calculated on assumed consumption over a future period, if
consumption is lower than expected in that period then revenues will be lower. As almost all costs are fixed
a decrease in revenue will have a direct impact on profit. In the event that a significant part of tariffs were to
be based on power generation or cross border energy flows (including congestion management i.e. revenue
from the auction of cross border capacity which is used in calculating grid tariffs), revenue may fluctuate
significantly more from year to year. Such fluctuating revenues, taken together with fixed costs, may have
an adverse effect on the financial position of the Company.

Unanticipated increases in operating costs related to reserves, construction, counter-trade or commodities;
any unexpected repair or maintenance costs; decreases in electricity consumption; or structural changes in
electricity production or consumption may have negative effects on the Company’s financial position. The
sum of operation and maintenance costs that are recovered through the tariffs is fixed each year according to
a standard methodology set by the Regulator. In the event that actual costs are higher then there will be no
compensation in the following years for the Company. Unanticipated increase in costs may occur due to
several reasons: the increase in procurement prices; the emergencies in the network as a result of severe
weather conditions; or breakage of submarine transmission cables etc.

Currently, the Company procures replacement of electricity lost through transmission with bilateral contracts
at a regulated price. From 2013 onwards, the Company will have to buy electricity from an open market,
where the price is likely to be more volatile. Increased prices contribute to increased costs and the recovery
of these costs through the adjusted tariffs may be delayed. Any such delayed recovery of costs may have an
adverse impact on the Company’s financial position.

Risks related to the functioning of the power system

Major disturbances or power shortages in the Estonian power system could occur due to: severe and
simultaneous faults in the grid; the malfunctioning of the network control system; adverse weather
conditions; terrorism or vandalism; human error; emergencies resulting in power generation failures in the



power stations; or an external incident, any of which could prevent the operation of the grid in whole or
partially. In certain cases (such as human error by the Company’s employees) the Company’s customers may
claim compensation for direct damages. Although the Company is prepared for these situations with various
reserves, operational codes, manuals, emergency provisions and protective clauses in the network contracts,
such disturbances or shortages may still occur and such occurrence could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial position and results of operations or its reputation.

Risks related to changes in legislation or regulation

The Company operates as the sole Transmission System Operator in Estonia under a licence granted to the
Company for an unlimited period. However, changes in Estonian legislation or European regulation could
result in the removal or suspension of the Company’s license.

Unfavourable changes in either European regulation or Estonian legislation may have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position. Stricter regulation on environmental matters and complicated
permit processes for the building of new transmission lines may negatively influence the Company’s ability
to fulfil its development targets and this may negatively influence the Company’s financial position and/or
reputation.

Electricity network tariffs regulation risk

Although the current regulatory regime has been in place since 2003 and has so far proven to be stable, there
is no guarantee that the network tariff regulations may not change in the future. For a regulated company,
revenue from tariffs is the major contributor to total revenues and hence profits. An unfavourable change in
the tariff regulations could result in a significant decrease in the revenues and profit generated by the
Company and weaken the Company’s financial position.

Risks related to changes in Taxation

Currently, there is no corporate income tax levied by the Estonian authorities on reinvested profit but that
may change in the future. Changes in applicable tax laws (in this regard or otherwise) may have an impact
on the profitability of the Company.

Risk of breaching financial covenants

There are two financial covenants in the long-term loan agreements that the Company is required to meet:
net debt to EBITDA and equity to assets ratios. Whilst the Company has not breached such covenants in the
past, in the event that these covenants were to be breached, the relevant creditors would be able to declare
an Event of Default pursuant to the relevant Facility Agreements and require prepayment of the entire
outstanding amount. Due to the cross default clauses in such loan agreements and the Notes upon issue, the
Company may need to refinance all outstanding debt. In such a situation there could be no assurance that the
Company would be able to refinance such outstanding debt on terms acceptable to it, or at all, and
accordingly would significantly impact on the ability of the Company to reach its repayment obligations,
including in respect of the Notes. For further information please see “The Business of Elering AS -
Financing”.

Risks related to health and safety matters and the environment

The Company transmits electricity via high voltage lines and substations. When working with high voltage
and large structures, there are inherent risks to persons and a risk of damage to property. Accidents may occur
due to a fault in the Company’s own power system operation, due to the action or inaction of a third party or
due to circumstances outside of the Company’s control, such as adverse weather conditions. The effects of
electric and magnetic fields pose further potential risks to the Company. In addition, the Company’s high
voltage equipment contains substances which are hazardous for the environment (such as sulfur
hexafluoride, oil etc.) which, in case of a leak, may contaminate the environment. If any of these risks
materialise, including any such damage to person or property, leaks, contamination or attribution of damage



to the Company in respect of its operations, the Company could be exposed to significant liability, damages
and/or clean up costs, as well as material adverse publicity from such events which may have a material
adverse effect on the condition of the Company.

Interest rate risk

The Company has fixed and floating rate debt. Fixed rate loans may result in financial losses in the event that
the relevant benchmark market interest rate falls. Floating interest rate loans may result in financial losses in
the event that the relevant benchmark market interest rates rise. Although the regulator’s methodology takes
the actual market interest rate into account while calculating the weighted average cost of capital for the
Company, there may be a delay of up to three years before the adjustment by the regulator, during which
time the increased interest expense will not be completely covered by the tariffs and that may weaken the
Company’s financial position.

Refinancing risk

The Company has amortising and bullet repayment debt obligations. The Company has not breached such
obligations in the past. In the event that the maturity date of a bullet debt falls during a period of unfavourable
market conditions, the costs of refinancing, if available at all, may be significantly more and result in the
weakening of the Company’s financial position. For further information please see “The Business of Elering
AS - Financing”.

State Ownership

The sole shareholder of the Company is the Republic of Estonia and its representatives in the Supervisory
Board are usually either politicians or civil servants. As such, their decisions may not always be primarily or
exclusively driven by profitability or other business considerations. State ownership of the Company may
therefore negatively impact the Company’s financial performance.

Power generation subsidies’ administration risk

Pursuant to the energy subsidy scheme of the Republic of Estonia the Company collects subsidies from the
electricity distribution companies and consumers, which the Company in turn pays out to the eligible power
generation companies. The subsidy tariff is calculated by the Company for the whole calendar year, based
on the Company’s forecasts of the consumption and eligible generation in Estonia. In the event that the
Company underestimates the amount of eligible generation and/or overestimates the consumption, the
Company has to finance the deficit. However, both the surplus and deficit will be taken into account when
calculating the following year’s subsidy tariff.

Counterparty risk

In conducting its business the Company, as with any other business, faces counterparty risk. Counterparty
risk may result in financial losses (including, but not limited to, funds deposited at banks, partners in long
term construction projects and transmission revenues to be received from customers as well as balancing
service revenues received from balance providers). Although the Company monitors its counterparty risks
and has a risk management policy that includes the management of counterparty risks, there is a possibility
that if these risks are realised, they may impact the Company’s financial performance.

Factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with the Notes

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

(i)  have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits
and risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this
Prospectus or any applicable supplement;



(i1))  have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its
overall investment portfolio;

(iii))  have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes,
including where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the potential
investor’s currency;

(iv)  understand thoroughly the terms of the Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
financial markets; and

(v)  be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

The Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity

If, as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Republic of Estonia or any
political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax, or any change in the official
interpretation of the laws or regulations of any such jurisdiction, which change or amendment becomes
effective after 12 July 2011, on the next Interest Payment Date the Issuer would be required to make a
withholding or deduction (in respect of which the Issuer will be required to pay additional amounts under
Condition 7 in order that the net amounts received by Noteholders are the same as would have been
receivable in the absence of the withholding or deduction), and the requirement to pay such additional
amounts cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it, the Issuer may, at its
option, redeem all of the Notes in accordance with the conditions of the Notes. See “Terms and Conditions
of the Notes — Redemption and Purchase — Redemption for Taxation Reasons” and “Terms and Conditions
of the Notes — Taxation”.

On any such redemption of the Notes, it may not be possible for a Noteholder to reinvest the redemption
proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes and this may only be possible
at a significantly lower rate.

Certification of non-Estonian residency in respect of Notes in definitive form

Holders should be aware that, if definitive Notes are issued, holders of any definitive Notes that are not held
through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg will be required to present evidence of non-Estonian
residency to the relevant Paying Agent in order to receive payments of interest in respect of the Notes free
of Estonian withholding tax (which, as at the date of this Prospectus, is charged at a rate of 21 per cent.).

Risks related to the Notes generally

Set out below is a brief description of certain risks relating to the Notes generally:

Modification

The terms and conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to consider
matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders
including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Noteholders who voted in a
manner contrary to the majority.

EU Savings Directive

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, each Member State is required
to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income)
paid by a person within its jurisdiction, or collected by such a person for, to an individual resident in that
other Member State or to certain limited types of entities established in that other Member State. However,



for a transitional period Luxembourg and Austria are instead required (unless during that period they elect
otherwise) to operate withholding system in relation to such payments (the ending of such transitional period
being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements relating to information exchange with
certain other countries). A number of non-EU countries and territories including Switzerland have adopted
similar measures (a withholding system in the case of Switzerland).

The European Commission has proposed certain amendments to the Directive which may, if implemented,
amend or broaden the scope of the requirements described above.

If a payment were to be made or collected through a Member State which has opted for a withholding system
and an amount of, or in respect of, tax were to be withheld from that payment, neither the Issuer nor any
Paying Agent nor any other person would be obliged to pay additional amounts with respect to any Note as
a result of the imposition of such withholding tax. The Issuer is required to maintain a Paying Agent having
its specified office in a Member State that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to the Directive.

Change of law

The terms and conditions of the Notes are based on English law in effect as at the date of this Prospectus.
No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to English law or
administrative practice after the date of this Prospectus.

Denominations involve integral multiples: definitive Notes

The Notes have denominations consisting of a minimum of €100,000 plus one or more higher integral
multiples of €1,000. It is possible that the Notes may be traded in amounts that are not integral multiples of
€100,000. In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount which is less
than €100,000 in his account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time may not receive a
definitive Note in respect of such holding (should definitive Notes be printed) and would need to purchase a
principal amount of Notes such that its holding amounts to €100,000.

If definitive Notes are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a denomination that
is not an integral multiple of €100,000 may be illiquid and difficult to trade.

Sovereign Immunity and Immunity of Assets

Pursuant to Condition 14.4 the Issuer has irrevocably and unconditionally waived and agreed not to raise
with respect to the Notes and the Coupons, to the extent permitted by applicable law, any right to claim
sovereign or other immunity from jurisdiction or execution and any similar defence, should any such
immunity become available to it.

There is no law or jurisprudence of Estonian courts in respect of sovereign, diplomatic or any other
immunity. Accordingly, if, notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 14.4, the Issuer sought to claim
immunity in respect of any action or proceeding brought in connection with the Notes, there is no guarantee
that such claim of immunity by the Issuer would not be successful.

In addition, the Estonian Code of Enforcement Procedure (tditemenetluse seadustik) provides a list of assets
against which a claim for payment cannot be made and/or which may not be sold in the course of
enforcement proceedings. Therefore, if the Issuer owns any assets the seizure or transfer of which is in
conflict with good morals or public interest, such assets would be immune from the enforcement of any
judgment or claim in respect of the Notes and the Coupons.

The Estonian Law on Restructurings

Pursuant to the Estonian Law on Restructurings (Saneerimisseadus) of 2008, as amended (the
Restructuring Act), companies may make an application to court for the commencement of restructuring
proceedings, and in the event that the court commences such restructuring proceedings, any enforcement
proceedings against, or bankruptcy applications in respect of, such company will be stayed until the
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reorganisation plan is approved or restructuring proceedings are terminated. In addition, the Restructuring
Act provides that, in connection with any reorganisation plan, creditors may agree to certain modifications
to the terms of any obligations owed by the relevant company to its creditors.

Any application by the Issuer to the Estonian courts for the commencement of restructuring proceedings
under the Restructuring Act would constitute an Event of Default under Condition 9.1. However, if
restructuring proceedings were commenced and/or a reorganisation plan was approved by the relevant court
in respect of the Issuer, there is no guarantee that Noteholders would be able to enforce the payment of
amounts due and payable under or in respect of the Notes, either immediately or during restructuring
proceedings. If approved by the creditors of the Issuer (including creditors of the Issuer other than the
Noteholders), amounts due and payable by the Issuer in respect of the Notes may also be subject to
modification in connection with any such restructuring proceedings and/or reorganisation plan, including,
inter alia, by way of an extension of the due date for the payment of any such amounts or a reduction in any
such amounts.

Risks related to the market generally

Set out below is a brief description of the principal market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk:

The secondary market generally

The Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market does
develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Notes easily or at prices
that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary
market.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes in euro. This presents certain risks relating to currency
conversions if an investor’s financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the
Investor’s Currency) other than euro. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change
(including changes due to devaluation of the euro or revaluation of the Investor’s Currency) and the risk that
authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor’s Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An
appreciation in the value of the Investor’s Currency relative to euro would decrease (1) the Investor’s
Currency-equivalent yield on the Notes, (2) the Investor’s Currency equivalent value of the principal payable
on the Notes and (3) the Investor’s Currency equivalent market value of the Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that
could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. As a result, investors may receive less interest or principal
than expected, or no interest or principal.

Interest rate risks

Investment in the Notes involves the risk that subsequent changes in market interest rates may adversely
affect the value of them.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks

Moody’s has assigned a credit rating to the Notes. This rating may not reflect the potential impact of all risks
related to structure, market, additional factors discussed above, and other factors that may affect the value of
the Notes. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised or
withdrawn by the rating agency at any time.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (the CRA
Regulation) from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such ratings are issued by a credit
rating agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA Regulation (and such registration has not
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been withdrawn or suspended), subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances whilst
the registration application is pending. Such general restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings
issued by non-EU credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered
credit rating agency or the relevant non-EU rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation
(and such endorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has not been withdrawn or suspended).

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to legal investment laws and regulations, or review
or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine
whether and to what extent (1) the Notes are legal investments for it, (2) the Notes can be used as collateral
for various types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of the Notes.
Financial institutions should consult their legal advisors or the appropriate regulators to determine the
appropriate treatment of the Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following is the text of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes which (subject to modification) will be
endorsed on each Note in definitive form:

The €225,000,000 4.625 per cent. Notes due 2018 (the Notes, which expression shall in these Conditions,
unless the context otherwise requires, include any further notes issued pursuant to Condition 13 and forming
a single series with the Notes) of Elering AS (the Issuer) are issued subject to and with the benefit of an
Agency Agreement dated 12 July 2011 (such agreement as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated
from time to time, the Agency Agreement) made between the Issuer and Deutsche Bank AG, London
Branch as fiscal agent and principal paying agent (the Fiscal Agent and, together with any other paying
agents appointed pursuant to the Agency Agreement, the Paying Agents).

The statements in these Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of and
definitions in the Agency Agreement. Copies of the Agency Agreement are available for inspection during
normal business hours by the holders of the Notes (the Noteholders) and the holders of the interest coupons
appertaining to the Notes (the Couponholders and the Coupons respectively) at the specified office of each
of the Paying Agents. The Noteholders and the Couponholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by,
and are deemed to have notice of, all the provisions of the Agency Agreement applicable to them. References
in these Conditions to the Fiscal Agent and the Paying Agents shall include any successor appointed under
the Agency Agreement.

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

1.1 Form and Denomination

The Notes are in bearer form, serially numbered, in the denominations of €100,000 and integral
multiples of €1,000 in excess thereof up to and including €199,000, each with Coupons attached on
issue. No definitive Notes will be issued with a denomination above €199,000. Notes of one
denomination may not be exchanged for Notes of any other denomination.

1.2 Title

Title to the Notes and to the Coupons will pass by delivery.

1.3 Holder Absolute Owner

The Issuer and any Paying Agent may (to the fullest extent permitted by applicable laws) deem and
treat the bearer of any Note or Coupon as the absolute owner for all purposes (whether or not the Note
or Coupon shall be overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing on the Note or
Coupon or any notice of previous loss or theft of the Note or Coupon).

2. STATUS

The Notes and the Coupons are direct, unconditional and (subject to the provisions of Condition 3)
unsecured obligations of the Issuer and (subject as provided above) rank and will rank pari passu,
without any preference among themselves, with all other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer, present and future, but, in the event of insolvency, only to the extent
permitted by applicable laws relating to creditors’ rights.

3. NEGATIVE PLEDGE
3.1 Negative Pledge

So long as any of the Notes remains outstanding (as defined in the Agency Agreement) the Issuer will
ensure that no Relevant Indebtedness (as defined below) will be secured by any mortgage, charge,
lien, pledge or other security interest (each a Security Interest) upon, or with respect to, any of the
present or future business, undertaking, assets or revenues (including any uncalled capital) of the
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3.2

4.2

4.3

Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries (as defined below) unless the Issuer, in the case of the creation of the
Security Interest, before or at the same time and, in any other case, promptly, takes any and all action
necessary to ensure that:

(a)  all amounts payable by it under the Notes and the Coupons are secured by the Security Interest
equally and rateably with the Relevant Indebtedness; or

(b)  such other Security Interest or other arrangement (whether or not it includes the giving of a
Security Interest) is provided as is approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (which is defined
in the Agency Agreement as a resolution duly passed by a majority of not less than three-
quarters of the votes cast) of the Noteholders.

Interpretation
For the purposes of these Conditions:

(a)  Relevant Indebtedness means (i) any present or future indebtedness (whether being principal,
premium, interest or other amounts) which is in the form of or represented by any notes, bonds,
debentures, debenture stock, loan stock or other securities which are for the time being, or are
capable of being, quoted, listed or ordinarily dealt in on any stock exchange, over-the-counter
or other securities market and (ii) any guarantee or indemnity of any such indebtedness; and

(b)  Subsidiary means, in relation to the Issuer, any company (i) in which the Issuer holds a
majority of the voting rights or (ii) of which the Issuer is a member and has the right to appoint
or remove a majority of the board of directors or (iii) of which the Issuer is a member and
controls a majority of the voting rights, and includes any company which is a Subsidiary of a
Subsidiary of the Issuer.

INTEREST
Interest Rate and Interest Payment Dates

The Notes bear interest from and including 12 July 2011 at the rate of 4.625 per cent. per annum,
payable annually in arrear on 12 July in each year (each an Interest Payment Date). The first
payment (representing a full year’s interest) shall be made on 12 July 2012.

Interest Accrual

Each Note will cease to bear interest from and including its due date for redemption unless, upon due
presentation, payment of the principal in respect of the Note is improperly withheld or refused or
unless default is otherwise made in respect of payment. In such event, interest will continue to accrue
until whichever is the earlier of:

(a)  the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Note have been paid; and

(b) five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such Notes
has been received by the Fiscal Agent and notice to that effect has been given to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 11.

Calculation of Broken Interest

When interest is required to be calculated in respect of a period of less than a full year, it shall be
calculated on the basis of (a) the actual number of days in the period from and including the date from
which interest begins to accrue (the Accrual Date) to but excluding the date on which it falls due
divided by (b) the actual number of days from and including the Accrual Date to but excluding the
next following Interest Payment Date.
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5.2

53

54

5.5

PAYMENTS
Payments in respect of Notes

Payments of principal and interest in respect of each Note will be made against presentation and
surrender (or, in the case of part payment only, endorsement) of the Note, except that payments of
interest due on an Interest Payment Date will be made against presentation and surrender (or, in the
case of part payment only, endorsement) of the relevant Coupon, in each case at the specified office
outside the United States of any of the Paying Agents.

Method of Payment

Payments will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other account to which euro may
be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by euro cheque.

Missing Unmatured Coupons

Each Note should be presented for payment together with all relative unmatured Coupons, failing
which the full amount of any relative missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment not being
made in full, that proportion of the full amount of the missing unmatured Coupon which the amount
so paid bears to the total amount due) will be deducted from the amount due for payment. Each
amount so deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against presentation and surrender
(or, in the case of part payment only, endorsement) of the relative missing Coupon at any time before
the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 7) in respect of the relevant
Note (whether or not the Coupon would otherwise have become void pursuant to Condition 8) or, if
later, five years after the date on which the Coupon would have become due, but not thereafter.

Payments subject to Applicable Laws

Payments in respect of principal and interest on Notes are subject in all cases to any fiscal or other
laws and regulations applicable in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of
Condition 7.

Payment only on a Presentation Date

A holder shall be entitled to present a Note or Coupon for payment only on a Presentation Date and
shall not, except as provided in Condition 4, be entitled to any further interest or other payment if a
Presentation Date is after the due date.

Presentation Date means a day which (subject to Condition 8):
(a)  is or falls after the relevant due date;

(b) s a Business Day in the place of the specified office of the Paying Agent at which the Note or
Coupon is presented for payment; and

(c) in the case of payment by credit or transfer to a euro account as referred to above, is a
TARGET?2 Settlement Day.

In this Condition:

(i)  Business Day means, in relation to any place, a day on which commercial banks and foreign
exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in
foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in that place; and

(i)  Target2 Settlement Day means any day on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time
Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET?2) system is open.
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5.6

6.2

6.3

Initial Paying Agents

The name of the initial Paying Agent and its initial specified office are set out at the end of these
Conditions. The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any
Paying Agent and to appoint additional or other Paying Agents provided that:

(a)  there will at all times be a Fiscal Agent;

(b)  there will at all times be at least one Paying Agent (which may be the Fiscal Agent) having its
specified office in a European city which, so long as the Notes are admitted to the official list
of the UK Listing Authority, shall be London or such other place as the UK Listing Authority
may approve;

(c)  the Issuer undertakes that it will ensure that it maintains a Paying Agent having its specified
office in a Member State of the European Union that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax
pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or complying
with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; and

(d)  there will at all times be a Paying Agent in a jurisdiction within Europe, other than the
jurisdiction in which the Issuer is incorporated.

Notice of any termination or appointment and of any changes in specified offices given to the
Noteholders promptly by the Issuer in accordance with Condition 11.

REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE
Redemption at Maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as provided below, the Issuer will redeem the
Notes at their principal amount on 12 July 2018.

Redemption for Taxation Reasons
If:

(a) as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the Relevant
Jurisdiction (as defined in Condition 7), or any change in the official interpretation of the laws
or regulations of the Relevant Jurisdiction, which change or amendment becomes effective
after 12 July 2011, on the next Interest Payment Date the Issuer would be required to pay
additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 7; and

(b)  the requirement cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it,

the Issuer may at its option, having given not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 11 (which notice shall be irrevocable), redeem all the
Notes, but not some only, at any time at their principal amount together with interest accrued to but
excluding the date of redemption, provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier
than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obliged to pay such additional
amounts, were a payment in respect of the Notes then due. Prior to the publication of any notice of
redemption pursuant to this paragraph, the Issuer shall deliver to the Fiscal Agent a certificate signed
by two Directors of the Issuer stating that the requirement referred to in (a) above will apply on the
next Interest Payment Date and cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available
to it and an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the effect that the Issuer
has or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a result of the change or amendment.

Redemption at the Option of the Holders on a Change of Control

If, at any time while any of the Notes remains outstanding, a Change of Control (as defined below)
occurs, each Noteholder shall have the option (unless, prior to the giving of the Change of Control
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6.4

Notice (as defined below), the Issuer shall have given notice under Condition 6.2) to require the Issuer
to redeem or, at the option of the Issuer, purchase (or procure the purchase of) that Noteholder’s
Note(s) at their principal amount together with (or, where purchased, together with an amount equal
to) interest (if any) accrued to (but excluding) the Put Date (as defined below). Such option (the Put
Option) shall operate as set out below.

If a Change of Control occurs the Issuer shall, within 14 days of the occurrence of such Change of
Control, give notice (a Change of Control Notice) to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition
11 specifying the nature of the Change of Control and the procedure for exercising the option
contained in this Condition 6.3.

To exercise the Put Option, if the relevant Note is held outside Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. (Euroclear)
and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme (Clearstream, Luxembourg), the Noteholder must
deliver such Note to the specified office of any Paying Agent, on a day which is a Business Day (as
defined in Condition 5.5) in London and in the place of such specified office falling within the period
(the Put Period) of 45 days after that on which a Change of Control Notice is given, accompanied by
a duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from
the specified office of any Paying Agent (a Put Notice) and in which the holder may specify a bank
account complying with the requirements of Condition 5 (or, if payment is required to be made by
cheque, an address) to which payment is to be made under this Condition 6.3. All unmatured Coupons
shall be dealt with as per the provisions of Condition 5.3. The Issuer shall redeem or, at its option,
purchase (or procure the purchase of) the relevant Note on the date (the Put Date) being the fifteenth
day after the date of expiry of the Put Period, unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled.
The Paying Agent to which such Note and Put Notice are delivered shall issue to the Noteholder
concerned a non-transferable receipt in respect of the Note so delivered. Payment in respect of any
Note so delivered shall be made, if the holder duly specifies a bank account in the Put Notice to which
payment is to be made on the Put Date, by transfer to that bank account (or, if an address is specified
for payment by cheque, by cheque sent by first class post to such address) and, in every other case,
on or after the Put Date, in each case against presentation and surrender or (as the case may be)
endorsement of such receipt at any specified office of any Paying Agent, subject in any such case as
provided in Condition 5. A Put Notice, once given, shall be irrevocable.

If the relevant Note is held through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, to exercise the Put Option
the Noteholder must, within the Put Period, give notice to the Principal Paying Agent of such exercise
in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable,
(which may include notice being given on such Noteholder’s instruction by Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg or any common depositary for them to the Principal Paying Agent by electronic means)
in a form acceptable to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable.

A Change of Control will be deemed to occur if (i) the Republic of Estonia ceases to own, directly
or indirectly (through any governmental agency or political subdivision thereof) 100 per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Issuer; or (ii) the Republic of Estonia ceases to have the power, directly or
indirectly, to cast, or control the casting of, 100 per cent. of the maximum number of votes that might
be cast at a general meeting of the Issuer.

Purchases

The Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries (as defined above) may at any time purchase Notes (provided that
all unmatured Coupons appertaining to the Notes are purchased with the Notes) in any manner and at
any price. Such Notes may be held, reissued, resold or surrendered by the purchaser through the Issuer
for cancellation. Notes held by or for the account of the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries for their own
account will cease to carry the right to attend and vote at meetings of Noteholders and will not be
taken into account in determining how many Notes are outstanding for the purposes of these
Conditions and the provisions of the Agency Agreement.
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6.5

6.6

7.2

Cancellations

All Notes which are (a) redeemed or (b) purchased by or on behalf of the Issuer or any of its
Subsidiaries and are surrendered for cancellation by the Issuer will forthwith be cancelled, together
with all relative unmatured Coupons attached to the Notes or surrendered with the Notes, and
accordingly may not be reissued or resold.

Notices Final

Upon the expiry of any notice as is referred to in paragraph 6.2 or 6.3 above the Issuer shall be bound
to redeem the Notes to which the notice refers in accordance with the terms of such paragraph.

TAXATION
Payment without Withholding

All payments in respect of the Notes by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be made without withholding
or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental
charges of whatever nature (Taxes) imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Relevant Jurisdiction,
unless the withholding or deduction of the Taxes is required by law. In that event, the Issuer will pay
such additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the
Noteholders and Couponholders after the withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts
which would have been receivable in respect of the Notes or, as the case may be, Coupons in the
absence of the withholding or deduction; except that no additional amounts shall be payable in
relation to any payment in respect of any Note or Coupon:

(a)  presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who is liable to the Taxes in respect of the
Note or Coupon by reason of his having some connection with the Relevant Jurisdiction other
than the mere holding of the Note or Coupon; or

(b)  presented for payment in the Republic of Estonia; or

(c)  where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required
to be made pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; or

(d)  presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who would have been able to avoid such
withholding or deduction by presenting the relevant Note or Coupon to another Paying Agent
in a Member State of the European Union; or

(e)  presented for payment more than 30 days after the Relevant Date (as defined below) except to
the extent that a holder would have been entitled to additional amounts on presenting the same
for payment on the last day of the period of 30 days assuming that day to have been a
Presentation Date (as defined in Condition 5).

Interpretation
In these Conditions:

(a)  Relevant Date means the date on which the payment first becomes due but, if the full amount
of the money payable has not been received by the Fiscal Agent on or before the due date, it
means the date on which, the full amount of the money having been so received, notice to that
effect has been duly given to the Noteholders by the Issuer in accordance with Condition 11;
and

(b)  Relevant Jurisdiction means the Republic of Estonia or any political subdivision or any
authority thereof or therein having power to tax or any other jurisdiction or any political
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax to which the Issuer becomes
subject in respect of payments made by it of principal and interest on the Notes and Coupons.
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7.3

Additional Amounts

Any reference in these Conditions to any amounts in respect of the Notes shall be deemed also to refer
to any additional amounts which may be payable under this Condition.

PRESCRIPTION

Notes and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within periods of 10 years (in the
case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) from the Relevant Date in respect of the Notes
or, as the case may be, the Coupons, subject to the provisions of Condition 5.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT
Events of Default

The holder of any Note may give notice to the Issuer that the Note is, and it shall accordingly forthwith
become, immediately due and repayable at its principal amount, together with interest accrued to the
date of repayment, if any of the following events (Events of Default) shall have occurred and be
continuing:

(a)  if default is made in the payment of any principal or interest due in respect of the Notes or any
of them and the default continues for a period of 7 days in respect of principal or 14 days in
respect of interest; or

(b) if the Issuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under these Conditions and
(except in any case where the failure is incapable of remedy, when no continuation or notice as
is hereinafter mentioned will be required) the failure continues for the period of 30 days
following the service by any Noteholder on the Issuer of notice requiring the same to be
remedied; or

(c) if:

(1) any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money (as defined below) of the Issuer or any of its
Subsidiaries becomes, or becomes capable of being declared, due and repayable
prematurely by reason of an event of default (however described);

(i)  the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries fails to make any payment in respect of any
Indebtedness for Borrowed Money on the due date for payment, as extended by any
originally applicable grace period;

(ili) any security given by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries for any Indebtedness for
Borrowed Money becomes enforceable; or

(iv)  default is made by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries in making any payment due under
any guarantee and/or indemnity given by it in relation to any Indebtedness for Borrowed
Money of any other person;

provided that the amount of Indebtedness for Borrowed Money referred to in sub-paragraphs
(1) to (ii1) above and/or the amount payable under the guarantee or indemnity referred to in (iv)
above, individually or in the aggregate, exceeds EUR10,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency or currencies); or

(d) if any order is made by any competent court or resolution is passed for the winding up or
dissolution of the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries; or

(e) if the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries ceases or threatens to cease to carry on the whole or a
substantial part of its business, save for the purposes of reorganisation on terms approved by an
Extraordinary Resolution of Noteholders, or the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries stops or
threatens to stop payment of, or is unable to, or admits inability to, pay, its debts (or any class
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9.2

10.

11.
111

of its debts) as they fall due or is deemed unable to pay its debts pursuant to or for the purposes
of any applicable law, or is adjudicated or found bankrupt or insolvent; or

(f)  if (i) proceedings are initiated against the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries under any applicable
liquidation, insolvency, composition, reorganisation or other similar laws or an application is
made (or documents filed with a court) for the appointment of an administrative or other
receiver, manager, administrator or other similar official, or an administrative or other receiver,
manager, administrator or other similar official is appointed, in relation to the Issuer or any of
its Subsidiaries or, as the case may be, in relation to the whole or any part of the undertaking
or assets of any of them or an encumbrancer takes possession of the whole or any part of the
undertaking or assets of any of them, or a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other
process is levied, enforced upon, sued out or put in force against the whole or any part of the
undertaking or assets of any of them, and (ii) in any such case (other than the appointment of
an administrator), unless initiated by the relevant company, is not discharged within 30 days;
or

(g)  if the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries (or their respective directors or shareholders) initiates or
consents to judicial proceedings relating to itself under any applicable liquidation, insolvency,
composition, reorganisation or other similar laws (including, without limitation, any
application by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries for the commencement of restructuring
proceedings pursuant to the Estonian Law on Restructurings (Saneerimisseadus) of 2008, as
amended and/or the obtaining of a moratorium) or makes a conveyance or assignment for the
benefit of, or enters into any composition or other arrangement with, its creditors generally (or
any class of its creditors) or any meeting is convened to consider a proposal for an arrangement
or composition with its creditors generally (or any class of its creditors).

Interpretation

For the purposes of this Condition, Indebtedness for Borrowed Money means any indebtedness
(whether being principal, premium, interest or other amounts) for or in respect of any notes, bonds,
debentures, debenture stock, loan stock or other securities or any borrowed money or any liability
under or in respect of any acceptance or acceptance credit.

REPLACEMENT OF NOTES AND COUPONS

Should any Note or Coupon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed it may be replaced at the
specified office of the Fiscal Agent, upon payment by the claimant of the expenses incurred in
connection with the replacement and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the Issuer may
reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes or Coupons must be surrendered before replacements
will be issued.

NOTICES
Notices to the Noteholders

All notices to the Noteholders will be valid if published in a leading English language daily newspaper
published in London or such other English language daily newspaper with general circulation in
Europe as the Issuer may decide. It is expected that publication will normally be made in the Financial
Times. The Issuer shall also ensure that notices are duly published in a manner which complies with
the rules and regulations of any stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the Notes are for
the time being listed. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first
publication or, where required to be published in more than one newspaper, on the date of the first
publication in all required newspapers.
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12.
12.1

12.2

13.

14.
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14.2

Notices from the Noteholders

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together
with the relative Note or Notes, with the Fiscal Agent or, if the Notes are held in a clearing system,
may be given through the clearing system in accordance with the standard rules and procedures.

MEETINGS OF NOTEHOLDERS AND MODIFICATION
Meetings of Noteholders

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders to consider
any matter affecting their interests, including the modification by Extraordinary Resolution of any of
these Conditions or any of the provisions of the Agency Agreement. The quorum at any meeting for
passing an Extraordinary Resolution will be one or more persons present holding or representing more
than 50 per cent. in principal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned
meeting one or more persons present whatever the principal amount of the Notes held or represented
by him or them, except that at any meeting the business of which includes the modification of certain
of these Conditions the necessary quorum for passing an Extraordinary Resolution will be one or more
persons present holding or representing not less than two-thirds, or at any adjourned meeting not less
than one-third, of the principal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary
Resolution passed at any meeting of the Noteholders will be binding on all Noteholders, whether or
not they are present at the meeting, and on all Couponholders.

Modification

The Fiscal Agent may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders or Couponholders, to any
modification of any of these Conditions or any of the provisions of the Agency Agreement for the
purpose of curing any ambiguity or of curing, correcting or supplementing any manifest or proven
error or any other defective provision contained herein or therein. Any modification shall be binding
on the Noteholders and the Couponholders and, unless the Fiscal Agent agrees otherwise, any
modification shall be notified by the Issuer to the Noteholders as soon as practicable thereafter in
accordance with Condition 11.

FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuer may from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders or Couponholders create and
issue further notes, having terms and conditions the same as those of the Notes, or the same except
for the amount of the first payment of interest, which may be consolidated and form a single series
with the outstanding Notes.

GOVERNING LAW AND SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION
Governing Law

The Agency Agreement, the Notes and the Coupons, and any non-contractual obligations arising out
of or in connection with the Agency Agreement, the Notes and the Coupons, are governed by, and will
be construed in accordance with English law.

Jurisdiction of English Courts

The Issuer has irrevocably agreed for the benefit of the Noteholders and the Couponholders that the
courts of England are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in
connection with the Notes or the Coupons (including any disputes relating to any non-contractual
obligations arising out of or in connection with the Notes and the Coupons) and accordingly has
submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts. The Issuer waives any objection to the
courts of England on the grounds that they are an inconvenient or inappropriate forum.
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14.3

14.4

14.5

15.

The Noteholders and the Couponholders may take any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or in
connection with the Notes or the Coupons respectively (including any suit, action or proceeding
relating to any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Notes and the
Coupons) (together referred to as Proceedings) against the Issuer in any other court of competent
jurisdiction and concurrent Proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

Appointment of Process Agent

The Issuer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally appoints Trusec Limited at its registered office for
the time being as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any Proceedings and
undertakes that in the event of such agent ceasing so to act it will appoint another person as its agent
for that purpose.

Sovereign Immunity

Should such immunity become available to the Issuer, to the extent permitted by applicable law the
Issuer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives and agrees not to raise with respect to the Notes
and the Coupons any right to claim sovereign or other immunity from jurisdiction or execution and
any similar defence, including in relation to the recognition of any judgement or court order, and
irrevocably and unconditionally consents to the giving of any relief or the issue of any process,
including, without limitation, the making, enforcement or execution against any property whatsoever
(irrespective of its use or intended use) of any order or judgment made or given in connection with
any Proceedings.

Other Documents

The Issuer has in the Agency Agreement submitted to the jurisdiction of the English courts and
appointed an agent in England for service of process, in terms substantially similar to those set out
above. In addition, the Issuer has, in such document, waived any rights to sovereign immunity and
other similar defences which it may have.

RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES

No rights are conferred on any person under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to
enforce any term of this Note, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists
or is available apart from that Act.
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SUMMARY OF PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE NOTES WHILE REPRESENTED BY
THE GLOBAL NOTES

The following is a summary of the provisions to be contained in the Temporary Global Note and the
Permanent Global Note (together the Global Notes) which will apply to, and in some cases modify, the Terms
and Conditions of the Notes while the Notes are represented by the Global Notes.

1. Exchange

The Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable in whole but not in part (free of charge to the
holder) for definitive Notes only if:

(a)  an event of default (as set out in Condition 9) has occurred and is continuing; or

(b)  the Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed
for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or
otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done
so and no successor clearing system is available; or

(c)  the Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered
were the Notes in definitive form.

The Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders if an Exchange Event occurs. In the case of (a)
or (b) above, the holder of the Permanent Global Note, acting on the instructions of one or more of
the Accountholders (as defined below), may give notice to the Issuer and the Fiscal Agent and, in the
case of (c) above, the Issuer may give notice to the Fiscal Agent of its intention to exchange the
Permanent Global Note for definitive Notes on or after the Exchange Date (as defined below).

On or after the Exchange Date the holder of the Permanent Global Note may or, in the case of (c)
above, shall surrender the Permanent Global Note to or to the order of the Fiscal Agent. In exchange
for the Permanent Global Note the Issuer will deliver, or procure the delivery of, an equal aggregate
principal amount of definitive Notes (having attached to them all Coupons in respect of interest which
has not already been paid on the Permanent Global Note), security printed in accordance with any
applicable legal and stock exchange requirements and in or substantially in the form set out in the
Agency Agreement. On exchange of the Permanent Global Note, the Issuer will procure that it is
cancelled and, if the holder so requests, returned to the holder together with any relevant definitive
Notes.

For these purposes, Exchange Date means a day specified in the notice requiring exchange falling not
less than 30 days after that on which such notice is given, being a day on which banks are open for
general business in the place in which the specified office of the Fiscal Agent is located and, except
in the case of exchange pursuant to (b) above, in the place in which the relevant clearing system is
located.

2. Payments

On and after 22 August 2011, no payment will be made on the Temporary Global Note unless
exchange for an interest in the Permanent Global Note is improperly withheld or refused. Payments
of principal and interest in respect of Notes represented by a Global Note will, subject as set out
below, be made to the bearer of such Global Note and, if no further payment falls to be made in respect
of the Notes, against surrender of such Global Note to the order of the Fiscal Agent or such other
Paying Agent as shall have been notified to the Noteholders for such purposes. The Issuer shall
procure that the amount so paid shall be entered pro rata in the records of Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg and the nominal amount of the Notes recorded in the records of Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg and represented by such Global Note will be reduced accordingly. Each
payment so made will discharge the Issuer’s obligations in respect thereof. Any failure to make the
entries in the records of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg shall not affect such discharge.
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Payments of interest on the Temporary Global Note (if permitted by the first sentence of this
paragraph) will be made only upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership unless such
certification has already been made.

Accountholders

For so long as all of the Notes are represented by one or both of the Global Notes and such Global
Note(s) is/are held on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, each person (other than
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear
or Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular principal amount of Notes (each an
Accountholder) (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the principal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any
person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes) shall be treated as the holder of that principal
amount for all purposes (including but not limited to, for the purposes of any quorum requirements
of, or the right to demand a poll at, meetings of the Noteholders and giving notices to the Issuer
pursuant to Condition 6.3 and Condition 9) other than with respect to the payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount of such Notes, the right to which shall be vested, as against the Issuer
solely in the bearer of the relevant Global Note in accordance with and subject to its terms. Each
Accountholder must look solely to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, for its
share of each payment made to the bearer of the relevant Global Note.

Notices

For so long as all of the Notes are represented by one or both of the Global Notes and such Global
Note(s) is/are held on behalf of Euroclear and/Clearstream, Luxembourg, notices to Noteholders may
be given by delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as the case
may be) for communication to the relative Accountholders rather than by publication as required by
Condition 11. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Noteholders on the second
day after the day on which such notice is delivered to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (as
the case may be) as aforesaid.

Whilst any of the Notes held by a Noteholder are represented by a Global Note, notices to be given
by such Noteholder may be given by such Noteholder (where applicable) through Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg and otherwise in such manner as the Fiscal Agent and Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg may approve for this purpose.

Prescription

Claims against the Issuer in respect of principal and interest on the Notes represented by a Global
Note will be prescribed after 10 years (in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest)
from the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 7).

Cancellation

Cancellation of any Note represented by a Global Note and required by the Terms and Conditions of
the Notes to be cancelled following its redemption or purchase will be effected by endorsement by or
on behalf of the Fiscal Agent of the reduction in the principal amount of the relevant Global Note on
the relevant part of the schedule thereto.

Put Option

For so long as all of the Notes are represented by one or both of the Global Notes and such Global
Note(s) is/are held on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, the option of the
Noteholders provided for in Condition 6.3 may be exercised by an Accountholder giving notice to the
Fiscal Agent in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
(which may include notice being given on his instruction by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg
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or any common depositary for them to the Fiscal Agent by electronic means) of the principal amount
of the Notes in respect of which such option is exercised and at the same time presenting or procuring
the presentation of the relevant Global Note to the Fiscal Agent for notation accordingly within the
time limits set forth in that Condition.

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg

Notes represented by a Global Note are transferable in accordance with the rules and procedures for
the time being of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as appropriate.

Eurosystem Eligibility

The Global Notes will be issued in New Global Note (NGN) form. This means that the Notes are
intended to be deposited with a common safekeeper for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
(each acting in its capacity as International Central Securities Depositary) and does not necessarily
mean that the Notes will be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and
intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem, either upon issue or at any or all times during their life.
Such recognition will depend upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria established by the
European Central Bank from time to time.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the issue of the Notes, amounting to approximately €221,845,000, will be applied by the
Issuer for its general corporate purposes, refinancing existing indebtedness and financing the investment
programme.
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THE BUSINESS OF ELERING AS

Introduction
Overview

The Issuer’s legal and commercial name is Elering AS (the Company). The Company is a public limited
liability company (aktsiaselts), which is wholly-owned by the Republic of Estonia (Estonia) and is engaged
in the transmission of electric power. The Company owns and operates the Estonian high voltage electricity
transmission grid (the Main Grid) which unites power stations, distribution networks and corporate
consumers in an integrated electricity system. The Company is the sole transmission system operator (TSO)
in Estonia and has a natural monopoly in the transmission of electricity within Estonia.

The Company is organised as a public limited liability company for an unlimited duration under the laws of
Estonia. Its registered office is located at Kadaka tee 42, 12915 Tallinn, Estonia and its telephone number is
+372 71 51222.

The Company is governed by the Estonian Commercial Code together with the specific obligations imposed
by other legislation such as the Electricity Market Act 2003, as amended (the EMA) and the State Assets Act
2009, as amended (the SAA). The Company must comply with legislation applicable to public limited
liability companies and, as a state-owned company, the Company must also comply with the additional
corporate governance controls imposed by the SAA.

As the Company owns and operates a key component of the Estonian infrastructure, the Main Grid, special
public service duties are imposed on the Company by law to maintain the electricity system in Estonia.

The Company has no subsidiaries.

In addition to the extra high voltage lines and substations (220-330kV) illustrated in the diagram above, the
Company also owns and operates 110kV and 35kV lines and substations. The transmission lines total
approximately 5,252 kilometres in length and the Company owns and operates approximately 150
substations as part of the Main Grid.

The tables below show the recent financial performance of the Company in 2010 and 2009.

As at and for the years
ended 31 December

2010 2009

(EUR millions)
REVENUE .coiiiieee et e e e et e e e e e araeeaeeas 89 75
OPETAING PIOTIL c.vientiriiiiiieiieie ettt st 21 20
INCOME tAX EXPEINSE ..envviiniiiiiiieiieeie ettt ettt e st 0 8
Profit fOr the Year.......cooouiiiiiiiii e 14 5
TOLAl ©QUILY +enteeitieeiiee ettt ettt et e 160 141
TOLAL @SSELS...uviieiuiiieeeiiiee et e et e et e ettt e e e ae e e et e e e earaeeestaeeeenaeeeesasaeeenneeeens 419 368
EBITDAD .ottt et e et e e taee e eaeae e 44 40
INVESTMENES® ...oiiiiiiiiieeie ettt et e e e e e sb e et eesseeesseeenseennseenens 27 31
DivIidends Paid......ceoveeieriieiiieieeiieeieete ettt 0 31
(1) EBITDA refers to operating profit plus depreciation, amortisation and impairment. EBITDA is calculated by the Company and is not

a figure that has been audited or is contained in the Financial Statements.
2) Investments refers to the amount spent during the relevant financial year on fixed assets.
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For the year ended
31 December

2010 2009
(unaudited)
(per cent.)
Return on EQUILY™ ..o..eiiiiii e 9.0 3.4
EQUILY/ASSEES™ .ottt et ettt ettt e et e st e ateenee e 38.1 38.2
Net Debt/EBITDA® 33 4.7
(1) Return on equity refers to profit for the year divided by the average total equity during the relevant financial year.
2) The equity/assets ratio has been calculated by the Company by dividing total equity by total assets as at the end of the relevant

financial year.

3) The net debt/EBITDA ratio has been calculated by dividing net debt (i.e. borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents) by EBITDA,
in each case as at the end of the relevant financial year.

History

The Company was established on 24 March 2004 as a private limited liability company and operated under
the legal name of Pohivork OU as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the state-owned Estonian energy utility
company, Eesti Energia AS (Eesti Energia). On 18 June 2009, the commercial and legal name of the
Company was changed to Elering OU.

Following the decision to separate the system management and transmission system assets from the rest of
Eesti Energia, the Minister of Economic Affairs and Communications was authorised by the Government of
Estonia to purchase the Company in 2009. Prior to the demerger, Eesti Energia was engaged in the
production, sale and transmission of electric and thermal power. The decision to separate the system
management and transmission system was part of the implementation of EC Directive 2009/72/EC, which
requires that transmission system operators function independently from production and sales activities. To
ensure compliance, the sale of the Company was completed on 27 January 2010.

On 8 April 2011, the Company was transformed from a private limited liability company into a public limited
liability company and renamed Elering AS.

Main Activities

The Company is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Main Grid and cross-border
interconnections for the use of electricity producers, sellers, distribution networks and balance providers
within Estonia. The EMA prohibits the Company from carrying on any business other than network business,
or certain other business activities such as balancing services.

The Company’s main activities are:

° operating and developing the Main Grid;

o securing the functioning of the Estonian energy system by maintaining the short term energy balance;
and
° developing and facilitating the functioning of the energy markets.

Public Service

The Company’s activities in relation to the operation and administration of the Main Grid are also considered
to be “vital services” under the Estonian Emergency Act of 2007, as amended. As a provider of vital services,
the Company must comply with several additional reporting requirements, including preparing a risk
assessment of the continuous operation of the vital services and an emergency plan for ensuring the
continuous operation of the vital services.
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Strategy

The Company’s strategic aims are two-fold; firstly, to provide its customers with a high quality supply of
electricity and secondly, to facilitate the efficient functioning of the energy markets in Estonia.

To ensure the supply of high quality electricity, the Company aims to:

° maintain and develop the Main Grid. In order to ensure high quality network service to the customers,
continuous development is required to minimise grid faults; and

° maintain the short term energy balance of the country. The Company constantly monitors the
country’s energy balance and if needed, reduces the imbalances by ordering electricity producers to
increase or decrease production. The remaining imbalances are settled commercially. The Company
operates Estonia’s energy balancing system by selling and buying the balancing energy to/from the
Estonian balance providers. The net balance of the Estonian energy system will be settled against the
Latvian balance provider SIA Latvenergo. For a more detailed description of the balancing service,
please see — Principal Areas of Business — Balancing Service.

To facilitate the efficient functioning of the energy markets, the Company is focused on increasing the
efficiency of the energy markets by:

° introducing power exchanges as the most efficient means of energy trading. Together with the Nordic
power exchange operator, NordPool Spot, the Company has already introduced the spot (day ahead)
and intraday markets in Estonia by expanding the corresponding power exchanges in Scandinavia
(NordPool Spot) and Elbas in Estonia. In the mid-term, the Company, together with NordPool Spot,
aims to expand these markets in the Baltic region and the introduction of the intra-hour market is
currently under development; and,

o facilitating the cross border energy trade. For this purpose, the Company allocates the existing cross
border transmission capacities in cooperation with the neighbouring TSOs to the traders, using market
based allocation mechanisms (namely explicit and implicit auctions). A new cross border transmission
line is being developed: in December 2010, the Company signed an agreement with the Finnish TSO
(Fingrid OYJ) to build the second interconnector between Estonia and Finland (Estlink 2, as further
discussed below).

The underlying principle of the Company’s strategy is to create value for its shareholder.

Shareholders

The Company’s share capital consists of 140,000 fully paid up shares, each with a nominal value of EUR
1,000. Estonia is the sole shareholder in the Company and The Ministry of Economic Affairs and
Communications (the Shareholder) holds the shares of the Company on behalf of Estonia and is the
registered shareholder in the Estonian Central Depositary for Securities.

The relationship between the Shareholder and the Company is conducted through the members of the
Supervisory Board, who are nominated by the Shareholder and the Ministry of Finance.

On 15 December 2010, the Supervisory Board approved the policy of the Company not to pay dividends
from 2011 to 2014, with the view to strengthening the Company’s balance sheet prior to implementing the
investment plan (see — Capital Expenditure). From 2015, the amount of dividends will be determined so as
to ensure that the Company is able to comply with its loan covenants, taking into account predetermined
safety margins. The Company has two covenants in its loan contracts: Equity to Assets and Net Debt to
EBITDA ratios.

Under the Estonian Commercial Code, the shareholders of a public limited liability company (including the
State) are neither liable for the debts of the company nor obliged to supply additional capital in the event of
a financial crisis. Save for an obligation of the Company to notify the Estonian Competition Board should
bankruptcy procedures be initiated against it, there are no special laws for bankruptcy of public service
entities, nor are there any derogations from the normal bankruptcy procedures.
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The Government of Estonia views the operations of the Company as of vital importance to the national
infrastructure and the Company is unaware of any plans that may result in a change of ownership. The
Shareholder has publicly supported the Company’s strategy on several occasions, including issuing two
comfort letters to the creditors of long term loans and increasing the Company’s share capital in December
2010. On 17 May 2011 the Shareholder decided to increase the share capital of the Company by a further
EUR 9.89 million, which according to the law has to be paid to the Company within 6 months of the decision
being taken. The Company does not receive any subsidies from the Government of Estonia.

Principal Areas of Business
Electricity Network Service

The permitted business activities of the Company are prescribed under the EMA. The Company’s principal
business is the provision of electricity network services, which accounted for 80 per cent. of total revenues
(with balance of supply services making up the majority of the remainder), 89 per cent. of total profit for the
year and 92 per cent. of operating profit in 2010. The EMA requires that any company providing electricity
network services be licensed by the Estonian Competition Authority (ECA) to operate. Currently, only one
licence may be issued in Estonia at any one time and this was issued to the Company on 9 February 2006
for an indefinite period.

The electricity network service is provided through the Main Grid. Prior to reaching the retail distribution
network, electricity generated by power generation plants is transferred by means of the Main Grid through
high voltage transmission lines that connect the power generation plants with the medium voltage
distribution networks and the largest industrial consumers. The Main Grid is essentially comprised of power
lines and transformer substations, connecting high voltage lines with lower voltage installations.

The Main Grid comprises 150 substations and approximately 5,252 km of transmission lines at a rated
voltage of 35kV, 110kV, 220kV and 330kV. The Company currently owns 100 per cent. of the Main Grid
(i.e. the power lines and transformer stations).

Transmission equipment breakdown by voltage:

Voltage (kV) Transmission lines (km) Substations
35 60 0

110 3,464 139

220 184 1

330 1,544 10

Cross Border Interconnections

The Main Grid is directly connected to the Russian, Latvian and Finnish transmission systems through a
number of transmission lines. These cross border interconnections form an integral part of the Main Grid and
are used for several purposes, including:

° cross border electricity trade;

° mutual support with access to the emergency reserves of the neighbouring energy systems. The total
required amount of emergency generation reserves are shared among the five neighbouring TSOs
(Russia, Belarus, Latvia, Lithuania and Estonia), according to the contract between them signed in
December 2010, resulting in a more cost-efficient system for emergency reserves;

° shared system services such as voltage support and frequency regulation; and

o ordering an increase or decrease in electricity production from neighbouring countries with the
purpose of maintaining the country’s energy balance.
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The cross border transmission capacities are as follows:

Cross Border Interconnection Capacity in MW
From Estonia to Finland 350-365

From Finland to Estonia 350-365

From Estonia to Latvia 700-1150

From Latvia to Estonia 750-1150

From Estonia to Russia 400-850

From Russia to Estonia 550-1000

Total transmission capacity depends on, amongst other factors, weather, configuration of the grid, generation
and consumption.

Balancing Service

Pursuant to the EMA, the balance of each market participant must be in equilibrium, i.e. the amount of
electricity produced and/or purchased by it must correspond to the amount of electricity sold and/or
consumed by it. As it would not be cost efficient for each market participant to take care of its hourly balance,
this service is usually provided by balance providers. Balance providers make the consumption and
production forecasts for their clients and procure any required energy. As it is not possible to accurately
predict the level of demand for electricity at all times there are imbalances in the amount of electricity in the
system.

Currently, there are four balance providers in Estonia, apart from the Company. In turn, the Company is also
a balance provider to these balance providers and the Latvian energy utility company SIA Latvenergo is a
balance provider to the Company. During those hours when the balance of a balance provider is negative, the
Company sells to the market participant the missing amount and, during those hours when the balance of a
balance provider is positive, the Company purchases the excessive amount. In those hours when the
country’s balance is negative, the Company procures the required energy from its balance provider
(Latvenergo) and, if needed, from the power stations. In those hours when the country’s balance is positive,
the Company sells the excessive energy to Latvenergo and, if needed, then to the power stations.

The Company calculates the purchasing and selling prices of balancing energy on an hourly basis. These
prices are calculated on the cost basis. Therefore, the revenues from selling balancing energy are equal to the
sum of the cost of purchasing balancing energy, inclusive of the nominal administration costs. As a result,
the provision of the balancing services does not affect the Company’s profitability. The potential credit risk
of the balance providers is mitigated through the guarantees they have to provide to the Company according
to the EMA.

Other Services

The Company also leases fibre optic cables installed on the transmission lines to a telecom company,
Televorgu AS, which uses them to supply communication services to its customers. The Company also
leases office space in its building at Kadaka tee 42, Tallinn.

In addition to the business areas outlined above, the Company also has certain public service operations
which do not generate revenue or incur costs.

Energy Subsidy Scheme

In order to achieve the objectives set by the EU Renewable Energy Directive 2009/28/EC, Estonia must
ensure that the share of renewable energy accounts for 25 per cent. of the final consumption of energy,
including 10 per cent., of fuels used in transport by 2020. In order to achieve this, Estonia has established a
subsidy scheme with a view to increase investments in: (a) the production of electricity from renewable
energy sources; and (b) the efficient combined production of heat and power. The Company’s role is to pay
such subsidies and collect service fees to finance the subsidies. Such service fees are paid by all distribution
network operators that provide network services and the large industrial consumers directly connected to the
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Main Grid. In 2010, subsidies totalling EEK 711 million (nearly EUR 45 million) were paid, of which EEK
651 million (EUR 41.6 million) was paid to renewable energy producers and EEK 63 million (EUR 4
million) was paid in respect of small efficient co-generators, representing an increase in subsidies of 76 per
cent. compared to 2009. Subsidies paid to wind turbines amounted to EEK 128 million (EUR 8.2 million),
to biomass electricity generation amounted to EEK 450 million (EUR 28.9 million), to hydro-energy
amounted to EEK 63 million (EUR 4 million), and subsidies for biogas electricity generation amounted to
EEK 9 million (EUR 0.6 million).As the Company is merely a paying agent, the subsidies collected and paid
out are not shown in the income statement of the Company. In case the amount of subsidies collected differs
from that paid out, the difference will be taken into account by the Company in the calculation of the next
year’s subsidy tariff.

Recent Developments
Estlink 2

In December 2010, the Company, together with the Finnish TSO (Fingrid OYJ), signed the main tender
contracts relating to the construction of a new 650 MW high voltage direct current link from the Piissi
substation in Estonia to the Anttila substation in Finland (Estlink 2). Completion of Estlink 2 is scheduled
for 2013.

The total length of the Estlink 2 line is approximately 170 kilometres, including 145 kilometres of submarine
cables, 12 kilometres of land cable in Estonia and 14 kilometres of overhead line in Finland. Estlink 2 will
operate at 450 kV. The total estimated cost of the entire project, including reinforcements of existing AC
networks in Estonia and Finland is approximately EUR 320 million, of which converter stations cost EUR
100 million and cables EUR 180 million.

The European Commission allocated a EUR 100 million grant to the project which will be divided equally
between the Company and Fingrid OYJ. The first instalment of the grant, in the amount of EUR 30 million,
was paid on 12 October 2010. The remaining instalments of EUR 40 million and EUR 30 million are
scheduled in 2013 and 2014 respectively.

Share increase

On 17 May 2011 the Shareholder decided to increase the share capital of the Company by EUR 9,890,000
upon issue of 9,890 new shares to the Republic of Estonia. Upon completion and registration of such share
capital increase, the Company’s share capital will consist of EUR 149,890 shares, each with nominal value
of EUR 1,000 held by the Ministry of Economic Affairs and Communications on behalf of the Republic of
Estonia.

Revenue
Overview

The Company’s revenues derive principally from two sources: firstly, from the users of the Main Grid (the
Company receives revenues from distribution network operators and a few directly connected customers for
the provision of transmission services); and secondly, from the provision of the balance services. However,
as described above, almost no profit is generated from the balance services.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company generated a total revenue of EEK 1,390.4 million (EUR
88.9 million) (an increase of 17.7 per cent. compared to EEK 1,181.3 million (EUR 75.5 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2009). The Company generated total profit for the year of EEK 212 million (EUR 13.5
million) (compared to EEK 82 million (EUR 5.2 million) in 2009), a year-on-year increase of 158 per cent.
The main reasons for the increase in profit for the year are the income tax that was paid on dividends in 2009
and the tariff increase since 1 June 2010.
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Electricity Network Services

In 2010, 80 per cent. of the Company’s revenue, EEK 1,106.6 million (EUR 70.7 million) in 2010 (compared
to EEK 1,061.7 million (EUR 67.9 million) in 2009), was generated from its network services, including:
EEK 1,052.1 million (EUR 67.2 million) from transmission fees (compared to EEK 1,010.8 million (EUR
64.6 million) in 2009), EEK 17.9 million (EUR 1.1 million) from connection fees (EEK 15.4 million (EUR
1.0 million) in 2009); and, EEK 36.6 million (EUR 2.3 million) (compared to EEK 35.5 million (EUR 2.3
million) in 2009) from other network services.

Of the total profit for the year of EEK 212 million (EUR 13.5 million), 89 per cent. (EEK 187.4 million, or
EUR 12.0 million) was attributable to the network services through the Main Grid.

The Company receives the bulk of the network service revenues from six distribution network companies,
which account for 91 per cent. of the total revenues generated by network services. Six customers who are
directly connected to the Main Grid account for 7 per cent. of network services revenues. Any customers
who apply for a new grid connection have to pay the connection fees in advance; the Company amortises
this connection fee over 20 years and such amortised fee accounts for 2 per cent. of network services
revenues per annum. There are also 13 power stations connected to the Main Grid which, pursuant to the
tariff system, are not required to pay a fee for the energy that they input to the grid.

A very high proportion of the network services revenues are generated from the distribution network
companies, which are natural monopolies and therefore a stable source of revenue. The Company did not
incur any bad debts in 2010 and the amount of overdue receivables at 31 December 2010 was 0.06 per cent.
of the total revenue.

Of the total revenue, EEK 1,361 million (EUR 87.0 million) was generated in Estonia in 2010 (compared to
EEK 1,109 million (EUR 70.9 million) in 2009). Latvia accounted for EEK 19.5 million (EUR 1.2 million)
of the revenue in 2010 (compared to EEK 36.0 million (EUR 2.3 million) in 2009) and was the biggest
market for the Company outside of Estonia. Russia accounted for EEK 5.9 million (EUR 380 thousand) in
2010 (compared to EEK 35.9 million (EUR 2.3 million) in 2009), Lithuania accounted for EEK 3.7 million
in 2010 (EUR 240 thousand) (compared to EEK 293 thousand (EUR 18 thousand) in 2009) and Finland
accounted for EEK 264 thousand in 2010 (EUR 17 thousand). In 2010, cross border interconnections
generated 2.1 per cent. of the total revenue. The decline in the revenue from Russia was caused by the sharp
decrease in the electricity transit volumes through Estonia because of the completion of a new power station
in the Kaliningrad region of the Russian Federation.

The Company’s revenue is regulated by the ECA. The permitted regulated revenue for each year is calculated
according to justified costs plus a reasonable return on the regulated assets. The return on assets (i.e.
operating profit) is determined by multiplying the regulated assets by the weighted average cost of capital
(WACC). The WACC is calculated by the regulator. For the purposes of the calculation, the cost of debt is
based on the 10 year German government bond yield to which a country risk margin and the company risk
margin are added. For the purposes of the calculation of the cost of equity, the beta of similar companies is
used, assuming the equity to assets ratio of 0.5. The WACC is set for 3 year periods, with the current WACC
for 2011 to 2013 set at 7.56 per cent. As a result of the above formulation, if there is any increase in
investment by the Company this will increase the amount of regulated assets held by the Company and
ultimately increase the revenue of the Company as well.

Balancing Services

Balance of Supply services accounted for 17.8 per cent. of revenues, EEK 247.7 million (EUR 15.8 million),
in 2010 (compared to EEK 102.4 million (EUR 6.5 million) in 2009).

As discussed in the Principal Areas of Business section above, the net profit generated by the balancing
service is always close to zero. The increase in balancing revenues and costs were caused by a larger amount
of forecast errors by the balance providers, along with the higher price of balancing energy bought from the
balance provider of the Company, the Latvian energy utility SIA Latvenergo.
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Other Services

Sales of other goods and services (as described above under “Principal Areas of Business — Other Services”)
represented 2.6 per cent. of revenues, EEK 36.1 million (EUR 2.3 million), in 2010 (compared to EEK 17.2
million (EUR 1.1 million) in 2009).

The following table shows a breakdown of revenue by source for the years ended 31 December 2009 and
2010.

For the year ended 31 December

2010 2009
(EEK (EUR (EEK (EUR
millions) millions) (percentage) millions) millions) (percentage)

Sales of network services...... 1,106.6 70.7 79.6 1,061.7 67.9 89.9
Transmission fees .................. 1,052.1 67.2 75.7 1,010.8 64.6 85.6
Connection fees ................... 17.9 1.1 1.3 15.5 1.0 1.3
Other network services.......... 36.6 2.3 2.6 35.5 2.3 3.0
Sales of balancing and

control electricity ................ 247.7 15.8 17.8 102.4 6.5 8.7
Sales of other goods and

SETVICES .evvvveeeeerrreeeeeireeeeeens 36.1 2.3 2.6 17.2 1.1 1.5
Total .........covvvvieiiiieiiee 1,390.4 88.9 100 1,181.3 75.5 100

The contribution of each business area to total revenues and total operating profit, as a percentage of the total
operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 is shown in the table below:

Network Balancing Other
Services Services Services
(per cent.)
REVENUE......oiiiiiiiieee et et e aae e 80 18 3
OPperating Profil.......cccueeeerienirriirienieieeestese ettt 92 1 7

Capital Expenditure

For regulatory purposes, all the Company’s assets are divided into two groups: regulated assets and non-
regulated assets. The difference is that depreciation and cost of capital of regulated assets are included in the
grid tariffs whereas the costs of non-regulated assets are not included. The main type of non-regulated assets
are those built for the connection of new clients’ equipment to the Main Grid. In this case the client pays for
100 per cent. of the cost of building these connections.

Investments of the Company in regulated assets are classified under two headings: regular investments and
extraordinary investments.

Regular Investments

The annual sum of the regular investments was set in 2004 by the ECA at EUR 29.8 million per annum. From
2005 the regulatory tariff period has been set at three years and within this period the Company may decide
how much to invest in each of the three years provided that the average amount invested is EUR 29.8 million
per annum. The purpose of the regular investments is to replace the aging transmission equipment and to
develop the Main Grid so that it meets the needs of growing domestic consumption. The Company is
confident that this amount of regular investment is sufficient to maintain the required quality standards of the
network service. The Company submits a detailed plan of regular investment to the ECA each time the new
tariffs are applied for.
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Extraordinary Investments

A schedule for proposed extraordinary investments until 2018 is set out under the Electrical Energy Sector
Development Plan of Estonia (the Development Plan), which was approved by the Government of Estonia
on 26 February 2009.

Pursuant to the Development Plan, the Company prepared a detailed plan of extraordinary investments and
submitted it to the ECA along with the tariff application. The ECA approved the plan and these investments
were included in the calculation of tariffs for the tariff period of 2011 to 2013. This Development Plan
includes the following investments:

Estlink 1

Estlink 1 is an existing interconnector between Estonia and Finland with a maximum capacity of 350MW. It
consists of two converter stations (one in Estonia, and one in Finland), a land cable and a submarine cable.
Estlink 1 currently belongs to Nordic Energy Link AS which is owned by private investors. Nordic Energy
Link AS has committed to sell Estlink 1 to the Company and the Finnish TSO, Fingrid OYJ, at a
predetermined price of approximately EUR 80 million at the latest on 31 December 2013. The Company’s
share of the acquisition price will be approximately EUR 40 million.

Estlink 2

Estlink 2 is a new interconnector between Estonia and Finland that is expected to be completed by 2013 (see
- Recent Developments — Estlink 2). See “Total Investments” below for details of the scheduled annual
investments in respect of Estlink 2.

Emergency Reserve Power Plant (ERPP)

The Company has received tenders for the construction of a combined fuel (light fuel oil and gas) power
plant with a capacity of 250MW, which is scheduled for completion in 2014. The sole purpose of this plant
will be to provide emergency backup power in the event that an existing power generating unit stops
production unexpectedly. In such case, it is intended that the ERPP will start generating electricity quickly
in order to restore the country’s power balance. As soon as the operator of the power plant that ceased
production finds a replacement (by either commencing its own back-up unit or contracting from other power
plants), the ERPP will stop producing electricity. The produced energy is sold as balancing energy to the
balance provider whose client’s power generating unit ceased production.

Further extraordinary investments may have to be carried out in the future, pursuant to decisions made by
the Government and the ECA. Both the regular and extraordinary investments will be part of the Company’s
regulated assets and will be funded through the tariff.

Total investments

After completion the above extraordinary investments, the total level is expected to drop back to the
historical level of the regular investments, i.e. EUR 29.8 million per annum. The scheduled annual
investments, along with historical annual investments in 2009 and 2010, are listed in the following table in
EUR millions.

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total

(EUR millions)
Regular.......cccccoeevvviennenen. 31 26 31 34 25 26 29 203
Estlink 2 .....cccovvveevieenennne. 1 41 32 68 20 0 162
ERPP ..coviiiieieee, 19 46 13 50 0 128
Estlink 1 ....ccovevevvevveeieenee, 40 40
Total........ccooooevvveiiennen, 31 27 91 112 146 96 29 533
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The Company is currently budgeting for a total capital expenditure of approximately EUR 475 million
between 2011 and 2015. The Company’s medium term investment plan is focused on the renovation of
existing power lines and substations and the construction of new power lines and substations to improve the
quality of the network service, mainly through reducing the risk of outages.

Financing

The Company has funded and expects to fund its capital expenditures using a combination of internally
generated funds, increases in share capital, borrowings and grants from the European Union.

Internally Generated Funds

The Company generates significant cash flows from its operating activities. In the financial year ended 31
December 2010, cash flow from operating activities for the Company was EUR 46.6 million. As the
Company invests further in regulated assets, the regulated assets and tariff will increase and consequently the
cash flow from operations as well.

Increase In Share Capital

In 2010 the Shareholder increased the share capital of the Company by EUR 5.8 million in order to
strengthen the Company’s balance sheet in the light of forthcoming investments. The total share capital of
the Company as at the date of this Prospectus is EUR 140 million. On 17 May 2011 the Shareholder decided
to increase the share capital by EUR 9.89 million. According to the law, this sum has to be paid to the
Company within 6 months of the decision being taken. The Company has resolved to pay no dividends until
2015.

Borrowings

In 2010, the Company concluded two long term loan agreements, each of which was for the purpose of
funding the Estlink 2 project: a EUR 75 million loan from the European Investment Bank (EIB), maturing
in 20 years from the drawdown of each tranche; and a EUR 25 million loan from the Nordic Investment Bank
(NIB) which is due in 2025. These are both amortising loans with a grace period of 5 years.

Grants from the European Union

In 2010, the European Commission decided to grant EUR 100 million to the Estlink 2 project which will be
divided equally between the Company and Fingrid OYJ. The first instalment of the grant (in the amount of
EUR 15 million) was received by the Company in 2010.

Scheduled Financing of Capital Expenditure for 2011 to 2015

As stated above (see Capital Expenditure — Total Investments) the Company is currently budgeting for a total
capital expenditure of approximately EUR 475 million in the period from 2011 to 2015. This is budgeted to
be financed from the following sources: EUR 234 million is budgeted to be provided from the internally
generated funds from the regulated tariffs; EUR 75 million has been provided under the current loan from
the EIB; EUR 25 million has been provided under the current loan from NIB; and EUR 50 million has been
provided in the form of a grant from the EU. Each of the loans from EIB and NIB are completely undrawn
as at the date of this Prospectus. The remaining EUR 91 million is budgeted to be financed from a
combination of part of the proceeds of the issue of the Notes as well as further bilateral loans between 2013
and 2015.
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Management
Overview

In shareholders’ meetings of the Company, the Shareholder is represented by the Minister of Economic
Affairs and Communications. The Minister exercises all of the Shareholder’s powers in a general meeting
and has authority to decide, with authorisation from the Government of Estonia, matters relating to setting
up, terminating, consolidating and reorganisating of the Company, changing its charter, the election of
members of the Supervisory Board and changing its share capital.

The Supervisory Board and the Management Board are responsible for the management of the Company.
The Supervisory Board is constituted on the basis of the requirements specified in the Commercial Code, the
SAA and the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Management Board of the Company undertakes the day-to-day management of the Company and its
rules of procedure are set out in the Commercial Code, the SAA and the Company’s articles of association.

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board comprises three to five members. The number of members of the Supervisory Board
is decided, and the members elected, by The Minister of Economic Affairs and Communications and The
Minister of Finance as representatives of the Shareholder. Compensation of the members of the Supervisory
Board are determined by a directive of The Minister of Economic Affairs and Communications. Currently,
the Supervisory Board of the Company has five members, appointed for a term of five years and may be re-
elected.

The Articles of Association set out restrictions on the selection of members of the Supervisory Board. In
order to ensure independence, a declaration of interests of members of the Supervisory Board is submitted
to The Ministry of Economic Affairs and Communications.

The Supervisory Board meets quarterly and is responsible for strategic planning and supervises the
Management Board’s activities. The Supervisory Board also monitors and approves decisions that are
beyond the ordinary course of business activities.

The current members of the Company’s Supervisory Board are set out below:

Name Position Current Employment

Lauri Tammiste Chairman Head of the Energy Department, Ministry of Economic Affairs
and Communication

Heiki Tammoja Member Director of Electrical Power Engineering Institute, Tallinn
University of Technology

Thomas Auviirt Member Head of the Financial Markets Department, Ministry of Finance

Jiiri Raatma Member Adviser of the Ministry of Economic Affairs and
Communications

Aivar Soerd Member Member of Parliament (Riigikogu)

The business address of each member of the Supervisory Board is Kadaka tee 42, 12915 Tallinn, Estonia.

No member of the Supervisory Board has any actual or potential conflict of interest between his or her duties
to the Company and his or her private interests and/or other duties.

Management Board

The Management Board comprises three members, elected by the Supervisory Board for a term of five years
and may be re-elected for further terms of up to five years. The Chairman of the Management Board
organises the work of the Management Board. The Management Board organises the everyday management
and economic activities of the Company.
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As with the Supervisory Board, the Articles of Association of the Company also set out certain requirements
in relation to the selection of members of the Management Board. In order to ensure independence, a
declaration of interests of members of the Management Board is submitted to The Ministry of Economic
Affairs and Communications.

The current members of the Management Board are set out below.

Date appointed Date appointed
Name from until Position Relevant Experience

Taavi Veskimidgi 1 December 2009 30 November 2014  Chairman  Minister of Finance,
Member of Parliament

Peep Soone 2 August 2006 31 December 2014  Member CFO of Elering since 2001
Kalle Kilk 13 February 2007 7 January 2015 Member Head of Operational Planning
since 2003

The business address of each member of the Management Board is Kadaka tee 42, 12915 Tallinn, Estonia.

No member of the Management Board has any actual or potential conflict of interest between his or her
duties to the Company and his or her private interests and/or other duties. No member of the Management
Board has any outside activities which are significant with respect to the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by a resolution of the Supervisory Board dated 18 June 2010. The
Audit Committee is comprised of five members, elected by the Supervisory Board for a term of three years
and may be re-elected. It is currently chaired by Thomas Auviirt and its other current members are Lauri
Tammiste, Heiki Tammoja, Jiiri Raatma and Aivar Soerd.

The Audit Committee exercises supervision over the Company’s internal accounting, risk management and
internal controls policies and reports directly to the Supervisory Board. Most of the internal audits are
outsourced to be performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting.

Risk Management

The Management Board is responsible for having in place a risk management policy (the “Risk
Management Policy”) to monitor and assess the risks that the Company faces. The Risk Management Policy
was reviewed and updated in February 2010. The new risk management and internal control system is based
on the Enterprise Risk Management Model, developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
Treadway Commission (a voluntary organisation that promotes good corporate governance).

Kalle Kukk has been appointed as the risk manager to implement the Risk Management Policy and report to
the Management Board. The risk manager is supported by risk administrators who include the head of the
Power System Control Centre of the electricity system, the head of the electricity markets department, the
financial manager, the head of the legal division and the strategy manager.

On the basis of the information received from the risk administrators, the risk manager prepares an overview
of the functioning of the risk management of the Company. The risk manager then reports the risks to the
Management Board twice a year. The report includes an overview of the identified risks, probability of risk
occurrence, their potential impact on the Company’s activities, and the control mechanisms for risk
management.

The main categories of risks within which risk administrators identify and assess risks are as follows:

o risks to the sustainable functioning of a service of vital importance (i.e. security of the Main Grid and
risks related to management of the system);
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o risks to the functioning of the Main Grid (i.e. related to identification of the balance, movement of
market information and disclosure of data);

° financial risks (i.e. credit, liquidity, currency and other risks that have a direct impact on the financing
and profitability of the Company);

o risks arising from the external environment (i.e. including regulatory, legal and other external risks
over which the Company does not have any direct control); and

° strategy risks (i.e. risks related to the strategic planning of the Company, network planning, IT
developments, work environment and personnel policy).

The risk manager meets with the Management Board twice a year to discuss the identified risks. On the basis
of information received, the Management Board reviews the identified risks and gives an assessment as to
whether all relevant risks arising from the Company’s activities have been taken into account. The
Management Board then reports its conclusions to the Supervisory Board.

Employees

The Company employed an average of 139 full time employees in the year ended 31 December 2010, of
whom 76 per cent. were men and 24 per cent. women. The average age of employees as at 31 December
2010 was 43. The Company considers that relations with the labour force and with unions are good, and
there have been no stoppages owing to employment disputes. The employees of the Company relating to
maintenance work are predominately comprised of project team leaders for grid planning and maintenance.
The construction and maintenance work (including emergency maintenance) itself is predominately sub-
contracted outside of the Company.

Insurance

The Company does not maintain any insurance cover in respect of its assets or operations. The Company has
an internal policy to insure assets with an individual value above a certain threshold, however, no assets
above such threshold are currently held by the Company.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The selected financial information included below has been extracted without material adjustment from the
Financial Statements which are included in full in the “Financial Statements” section of this Prospectus.

Statements of Financial Position

As at 31 December

2010 2009
(EEK thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ......cc.evieriieriieiiiieiieee et 626,366 0
Trade and Other TECEIVADIES ......ooovviiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e ettt e e eees 342,159 208,568
TOtal CUITENE ASSELS........oooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 969,025 208,568
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eqUIPMENT .......coocuiiiiiiniiieie et 5,544,548 5,516,156
INEANZIDIE ASSELS ..uvieiiieiiieeie ettt ettt 48,497 31,001
TOtal NON-CUITENE ASSELS ...uvvvvieeeiieiireeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeirreeeeeeeeiareeeeeeeeitareeeeeeeearreeeeeeeaes 5,593,045 5,547,157
TOTAL ASSETS ..ot ee e e 6,562,070 5,755,725
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
BOITOWINEZS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et eneeeae 0 2,935,838
Trade and other PaAYabIEs ......ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 568,608 273,838
Total CUITENt HHADIIIEIES  weveeeeeee ettt ettt e e e e e eeeeeaareeeeeeees 568,608 3,209,676
Non-current liabilities
BOITOWINES ..ttt ettt ettt et be et eateeaeenas 2,905,493 0
DELEITEA INCOIMIE ..ttt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaeeaeas 349,385 346,541
Prepayments related to gOvernment Zrants .......c...ccocceeveeerieeniieenieeneeeieenieenieenne 237,033 0
Total non-current Habilities .........cccovviiiiiiiiiiiiie et 3,491911 346,541
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...t 4,060,519 3,556,217
EQUITY
Share CAPILAl ....ccveevieiieeieiiieieeieee ettt ettt e e e seebeenbeessesseenseen 2,190,524 2,100,000
Statutory reserve Capital ......c..oocooivieiiieiiieiceee e 44,039 44,039
REtained @arnings .......eevverueeruieiieiieniieieei ettt ettt ettt ettt e eas 266,988 55,469
TOTAL EQUITY ...t 2,501,551 2,199,508
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ..ooooiiiiiiiie e 6,562,070 5,755,725
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Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended
31 December

2010 2009
(EEK thousands)

REVEIUE ..ottt e et e e et eeeaeeeeeraeeeeeareeeennes 1,390,429 1,181,313
(13T g 11 TeTo) s s LSRR 1,348 283
Goods, raw materials and SETVICES .....ccouvvviieeeeeiiieeeeeeeeceeee e eeeeee e eeerre e e e eeeaaeens -590,753 -452,203
Other OPErating EXPEIISES ......eevverveerterrertierteetertesteesteetestesttesseessessesseesseensessesseens -46,045 -47,888
SHATT COSES ettt ettt e e e eeeaeeeeeaeeeaeaaeeaens -59,521 -56,574
Depreciation, amortisation and impairMent............ceceeerueeerieerieenieenee e sieesieenne -369,872 -304,826
OhET EXPEINSES ...ceevieiiieiiieiieeit ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e s e b enaees -649 =770
Operating Profit ..o 324,937 319,334
FINANCE INCOMIE. .....uvviiiiiiiiiieiiiee et eee e e e ettt e e e e e e atae e e e e e eeaaaaeeeeeens 1,356 0
FINANICE COSES ettt e e e e e e e e e et aeeeeaeeeeeaaeaeeeaaeees -114,774 -109,736
Profit before iNCOMEe taX...............cccooeiiiiiiiiiii e 211,519 209,598
INCOME tAX EXPEIISE ...veeieeeiiiiiieeiie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e sabeesabeeniae e 0 127,619
Profit for the Year ..............cccoooiiiiiiieiceee e s 211,519 81,979
Total comprehensive income for the year ..., 211,519 81,979
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Cash Flow Statements

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax ...........coeeevvveeiieviiiieeeeeeeinnns

Adjustments for:
— Profit from sale of property, plant and equipment

— Depreciation, amortisation and impairment ..........
— INtEIest EXPENSES ...ovveervirieriieriienieeieete et eeene
— Interest iNCOME .....ccevveverireeiiicecieeeescseen

Changes in working capital:

— Changes in receivables and prepayments related to operating activities ............
— Changes in liabilities and prepayments related to operating activities................

— Changes in deferred income from connection and

other service fees ................

Cash generated from operations, excl. interest and income tax ......................

Income tax paid .......ccooceeviiiieniiniee e
Interest paid .......cocoeeeiiiiiiiiee
Interest received ........cceivierieeiiiiniieie e

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..........ccoceiiiniiiceee.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets..............cc.ccc....

Foreign grants to acquire non-current assets ............

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ............cccceeeerervienienienennne.
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES.............ccocooiiiiiiie.
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of short-term borrowings .........c............
Net change in overdraft .........cccoocveviniineniicee,
Long-term bank loans received ..........cccceviieenieenee.
Contribution to share capital ..........ccccoeveiiiieniennee.
Dividends paid .......ccccceeviiieiiiieniieie e

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES .........cooooiiiiieieeeeeea,
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..................c...ccoeeirennn.
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year...................................

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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For the year ended
31 December

2010 2009
(EEK thousands)
211,519 209,598
-961 -244
369,872 304,826
114,674 109,716
-1,334 0
-136,568 -13,084
256,143 66,947
2,844 26,580
816,189 704,339
0 -127,619
-87,501 -109,716
1,061 0
729,748 467,004
-408,392 -490,408
237,033 0
5,059 365
-166,300 -490,043
-2,046,586 0
-889,252 503,131
2,908,732 0
90,524 0
0 -480,092
63,418 23,039
626,866 0
0 0
626,866 0



Statements of Changes in Equity

Statutory
Share reserve  Retained
Capital capital Earnings Total
(EEK thousands)
Balance as at 1 January 2009.................ccoooenienen. 2,100,000 30,261 467,360 2,597,621
Comprehensive income for financial year .................. 0 0 81,979 81,979
Transfers to statutory reserve capital ..........ccccceennee. 0 13,778 -13,778 0
Dividends paid.......cccevverieriienienieieeeieeeeeeee e 0 0 -480,092 -480,092
Balance as at 31 December 2009 .............................. 2,100,000 44,039 55,469 2,199,508
Contribution to share capital ........c.cccoeoveeniiiniinnennnen. 90,524 0 0 90,524
Comprehensive income for financial year .................. 0 0 211,519 211,519
Balance as at 31 December 2010 .............................. 2,190,524 44,039 266,988 2,501,551
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REGULATION

EU Energy Regulation: The Third Energy Package

The European Union institutions have adopted the third legislative package (the Third Energy Package) for
the internal EU gas and electricity market, aimed at completing the liberalisation of both the electricity and
the gas markets. The Third Energy Package consists of three regulations and two directives. The regulations
became directly applicable in the Republic of Estonia as of 3 March 2011. The directives in the package are
Directive 2009/72/EC, in relation to the electricity market, and Directive 2009/73/EC, in relation to the gas
market. The transposition date for both directives was set for 3 March 2011 as well, but these have not yet
been transposed into Estonian legislation. The draft amendments to the Electricity Market Act 2003 (the
“Act”) which seek to transpose Directive 2009/72/EC into Estonian legislation, are in the preparatory stages.

Pursuant to the Third Energy Package, the Company, as the TSO, has already been legally unbundled.
However, the Republic of Estonia remains the shareholder of both the Company and the power generation
utility company, Eesti Energia. The administrator of state assets is in both cases The Ministry of Economic
Affairs and Communications (the MEAC). This currently does not satisfy the requirement of Directive
2009/72/EC, which states that two separate public bodies, or two separate persons, need to exercise control
over the TSO on the one hand, and over an undertaking performing any of the functions of generation or
supply on the other.

The deadline to achieve the unbundling is 3 March 2012 or, if the Government of Estonia exercises its option
to derogate, by 3 March 2013. According to the draft amendments, the Republic of Estonia intends to
exercise the derogation and extend the deadline to 3 March 2013. As the Government of Estonia has not
expressed any intentions to transfer the shares in either the Company or Eesti Energia to a private investor,
it is envisaged that the solution will be to change the administrator of the shares in either the Company or
Eesti Energia to another Ministry of the Government.

The MEAC commission responsible for the unbundling resolved on 24 August 2009 that it would be
advisable to leave the MEAC as the administrator of the shares of the Company and appoint the Ministry of
Finance as the new administrator of the shares of Eesti Energia.

After the transposition of Directive 2009/72/EC into Estonian legislation, the Company will have to be
certified according to the procedures laid down in Directive 2009/72/EC and designated as a TSO. To the
best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company currently satisfies the requirements for the certification of
TSOs under Directive 2009/72/EC as well as under the draft amendments to the Act.

According to the draft amendments to the Act, the TSO may continue generating electricity to compensate
for network losses and power outages in reserve power plants without violating the unbundling requirement.
However, the draft amendments are subject to change and are not limited to the transposition of Directive
2009/72/EC. As such, the Company cannot make any statements as to the potential effect of such
amendments on the Company.

Estonian electricity regulation

The Estonian electricity market is mainly regulated by the Act and its implementing acts. According to the
Act, Estonia is to open the market for generation of electricity in full by 1 January 2013. Prior to 1 January
2013, at least 35 per cent. of the market for generation of electricity must be open to competition, i.e. the
number of consumers who have the option to choose their electricity providers must be such that the total
amount of electricity used by the relevant consumers makes up at least 35 per cent. of the total electricity
consumption in Estonia.

The MEAC and the ECA share responsibility for the overall supervision and regulation of the Estonian
electricity sector.

The MEAC establishes development guidelines for the electricity sector. The ECA’s responsibilities include,
but are not limited to, the responsibility to:

45



o issue and revoke activity licences, extend the terms of activity licences, establish and amend the
conditions thereof and monitor compliance with the conditions of activity licences;

° monitor the prices of balancing electricity determined by the system operator and grant approval for
the standard terms and conditions of balance agreements;

° grants approval for transmission charges, except for transmission charges for the transit of electricity,
and for the standard terms and conditions for the provision of network services;

° monitor the charges for electricity transmission, connection charges and charges for the amendment
of conditions collected by network operators;

° resolve disputes between market participants;

o check that market participants comply with the conditions set out in the Act and its implementing acts,
and perform the relevant obligations;

o issue mandatory directions to market participants; and

° prepare and publish uniform methods for the calculation of justified network charges based on the
weighted average capital cost, as well as other methods and guidelines.

The ECA has issued an activity licence to the Company for the provision of network services through the
transmission network. The activity licence is for an unlimited duration.

The Company, as the transmission network operator, is also a system operator and holds a monopoly
position. The statutory obligations of the Company as the TSO include, but are not limited to, the obligation
to:

° collect and pay subsidies for renewable energy and energy produced in an efficient cogeneration
regime (financed by the customers according to the volume of consumption of the network services);

o issue guarantees of origin to the producers at their request certifying that the producer generated
electricity from renewable energy sources or in efficient cogeneration regime;

° comply with the requirements established for providers of services of vital importance;

o ensure security of supply and balance of the system at any moment in time, including entering into
balance agreements with balance providers; and

o participate in the inter-TSO compensation mechanism as set out in Regulation 714/2009.

All network operators have an obligation to develop the network such that the continued provision of
network services is ensured to all customers, producers, line possessors and any other network operators
connected to the network. Upon revocation of the activity licence of the Company, the ECA has the right to
request that the Company must continue to perform the obligations arising from legislation and the
conditions of the activity licence for a period of time determined by the ECA.

Under the Act, the liability of the TSO is limited to the direct proprietary damage and damages caused by
the fault of the TSO.

Regulation of network charges

All network charges must be transparent and in compliance with the principle of equal treatment. All
transmission charges, except for transmission charges for the transit of electricity which is not regulated,
need the prior approval of the ECA. Upon setting network charges, the necessity of ensuring security of
supply and efficiency must be taken into account. The amount of network charges must enable network
operators to perform the obligations arising from legislation and the conditions of the activity licence and to
ensure justified profitability of the invested capital.

The ECA has prepared and published two guidelines regarding the calculation of justified network charges:
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o Standard Methodology for Calculating Electricity Network Charges (Standard Methodology); and
o Guidelines for determination of Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC Guidelines).

According to the Standard Methodology, the ECA uses the revenue cap method. The allowed regulated
revenue for each year is the sum of justified costs and a reasonable return on the regulated assets (operating
profit = Regulated Assets x WACC). As a result, the investments are always rewarded as they increase the
regulated assets and consequently operating profit. Network charges are calculated and approved for each
year within a three-year regulation period at the request of the network operator. Each network charge will
be adjusted once a year. Adjustments are made based on an adjustment formula for network charges
approved by the ECA, taking into account the differences in forecasted and actual non-controllable costs, as
well as actual transmission volumes, inflation, etc. In general, the adjustments are small. Currently, the ECA
has approved a WACC of 7.56 per cent. for years 2011-2013 for the Company.

The ECA has approved investments in the networks in the amount of approximately EUR 56 million for
2011, EUR 63.7 million for 2012 and EUR 167.8 million for 2013. The most recently approved network
charges entered into force on 1 January 2011.

The Company has a policy by which it prepares its budget for the next regulation period only once the ECA
has approved the size of operating and capital costs for that same regulation period.

Estonian environmental legislation

The Company’s operations are subject to environmental legislation and the Company has a responsibility to
prevent any negative environmental effects. Estonian environmental legislation includes the Environmental
Liability Act of 2007, as amended, which implements Directive 2004/35/EC of the European Parliament and
of the Council on environmental liability with regard to the prevention and remedying of environmental
damage.

The Company’s activities give rise to several environmental risks, in particular due to noise generated from
power transformers, electric and magnetic fields in the area surrounding power lines and oil contained in the
electrical equipment in the Company’s substations.

The Company is also engaged in the construction of one reserve power plant which give rise to additional
environmental risks such as the emission of pollutants.

To the best of its knowledge, the Company is currently in compliance with all Estonian environmental
requirements.

Estonian health and safety regulations

The Company’s operations are subject to health and safety regulations. The Company transmits electricity
via high voltage lines and substations and there is an inherent risk to employees of the Company, other
personnel working in such an environment, as well as third persons. Accidents may occur for a variety of
reasons.

The Company is also engaged in the construction of one reserve power plant which give rise to additional
health and safety risks related to the generation of electricity.

According to the Occupational Health and Safety Act of 1999, as amended, an employer must ensure
compliance with the occupational health and safety requirements in every aspect related to the work. Specific
technical and safety requirements arise from the Electrical Safety Act of 2007 and the Grid Code.

To the best of its knowledge, the Company is currently in compliance with all Estonian health and safety
requirements.
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THE REPUBLIC OF ESTONIA

General Description

Estonia is located on the eastern coast of the Baltic Sea in the Nordic region. The territory of Estonia covers
approximately 45,000 square kilometres and it is larger in area than Denmark, Switzerland or The
Netherlands. Estonia is bordered to the north by the Gulf of Finland, to the west by the Baltic Sea, to the
south by Latvia, and to the east by the Russian Federation. Its nearest overseas neighbour is Finland, which
lies 85 kilometres across the Baltic Sea from Tallinn, Estonia’s capital. According to a census conducted in
2010, the population of Estonia is approximately 1.34 million and with 69 per cent. of the total population
living in urban centres.

Estonia, along with Finland, Lithuania and Latvia, first attained independence in 1918. Estonia was later
occupied by the Soviet Union in 1940 and regained its independence in 1991 with the collapse of the
communist regime. In June 1992, Estonia replaced the Russian rouble with the Estonian kroon and
immediately began a programme of free market reforms. On 1 January 2011, Estonia adopted the euro,
becoming the seventeenth member of the euro zone.

Estonia’s new constitution was introduced in 1992 and provides for a unicameral 101-seat Parliament
(Riigikogu) whose members are elected directly by proportional representation. Traditionally, centre and
right wing parties have been more popular in Estonia. The current Government is formed by the coalition of
two right wing parties: the liberal Reform Party Pro Patria and the conservative Res Publica Union in the
Parliament (Riigikogu).

Estonia is listed as a High-Income Economy by the World Bank and is ranked as a High-Income Member of
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The United Nations lists Estonia as a
developed country with a Human Development Index of “Very High”.

Estonia is a member of a number of international organisations including the United Nations, NATO, the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development, the World Trade Organisation, the International
Monetary Fund, the World Bank, European Bank for Reconstruction and Development and the Organisation
for Security and Co-operation in Europe.

The Estonian Economy
General

Estonia has a modern market-based economy and one of the highest per capita income levels in Central
Europe and the Baltic region. Estonia’s successive governments have pursued a free market and pro-business
economic agenda. The economy also benefits from strong electronics and telecommunications sectors and
strong trade ties with Finland, Sweden and Germany.

Economic Growth

Between 2003 and 2007, Estonia’s GDP increased at an average of approximately 8 per cent. per annum.
From 2007, the growth rate began gradually decreasing and as a result of the sharp decline in trade volumes
in the global economy at the end of 2008, Estonia’s GDP decreased by 5.1 per cent. year on year. In 2009,
due to decreased domestic and foreign demand, GDP decreased by 13.9 per cent.

Rising exports to Sweden and Finland led to an economic recovery in 2010. Despite the contracting of the
economy between 2008 and 2009, the average annual GDP growth in the last ten years has remained at 4.1
per cent. The table below shows the percentage change in the GDP of Estonia between 2006 and 2010,
compared to the average of the 27 EU Member States, as determined by Eurostat.

GDP change (per cent.) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
EStOnia .......cooovvuvviiiieieiiieeceeeeeee e 10.6 6.9 -5.1 -13.9 3.1
EU-27 average .......cccceeevevveneenenieniennenn 32 3.0 0.5 -4.2 1.8

Source: Eurostat
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Inflation

The rate of inflation, as measured by the harmonised consumer price index, reached its peak in 2008.
However, prices were corrected after the introduction of the euro and the increase in the rate of inflation in
Estonia has since then been as a result of external aspects, such as the appreciation of oil and other raw
materials. For the industrial goods and services, the price pressures have been marginal. The table below
shows the percentage change in the Harmonised Index of Consumer Prices in Estonia between 2006 and
2010, compared to the average of the 27 EU Member States, as determined by Eurostat.

Harmonised Index of Consumer Prices (HICP)

change (per cent.) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
EStONia ..c.ccveeieieieiecicecceeeeeeee s 44 6.7 10.6 0.2 2.7
EU-27 average .......cccceveeeevieeneeeiienieens 2.2 2.3 3.7 1.0 2.1

Source: Eurostat

Unemployment

Unemployment rates in Estonia rose in the years of the economic downturn. Although there are still
approximately 66,000 registered unemployed, the numbers are steadily dropping. According to the
International Labour Organisation’s definition of unemployment rate, the second largest reduction in the EU
was observed between the fourth quarters of 2009 and 2010 in Estonia, a decrease of 2.2 per cent.

Year 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Annual average rate of registered
unemployment (per cent.) ........coeuee.... 2.4 2.1 3.0 10.2 12.3

Source: Estonian Unemployment Insurance Fund

Public Finances

Maintaining a balance of public expenditures and revenues has been a key priority of the Estonian
Government. The table below shows the government surplus or deficit as a percentage of GDP in Estonia
between 2006 and 2010, compared to the average of the 27 EU Member States, as determined by Eurostat.

Government surplus/(-)deficit as

percentage of GDP 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
EStonia .c..coceeeieieieieninccceeeceeene 24 2.5 -2.8 -1.7 0.1
EU 27 average .......cccceeevevveneenieneeniennenn -1.5 -0.9 2.4 -6.8 -6.4

Source: Eurostat

Government debt has remained at low levels over the last 10 years. During growth years, the Government
has regularly provided a budget surplus. In 2010, Estonia had the lowest public sector debt among the
European Union Member States (6.6 per cent. of the GDP). The table below shows the government’s gross
debt as a percentage of GDP in Estonia, compared to the average of the 27 EU Member States, as determined
by Eurostat.

Government gross debt

as a percentage of GDP 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
EStonia ......cccoeviiiiieiiieeec e 4.4 3.7 4.6 7.2 6.6
EU 27 average ........ccccoceeveeeeeeeeicnennn. 61.5 59.0 62.3 74.4 80.0

Source: Eurostat
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Foreign Trade

Foreign demand increased sales volumes in both the production and service industries in Estonia. The
reduction of operating costs, especially labour costs, was also significant, improving efficiency and
competitiveness. In 2010, the export of goods already exceeded the pre-crisis levels. This was led by the
effective use of the Estonian electronics industry’s potential in the export chain for communication devices
via Sweden, however the growth has been broad, as is shown by increases in wood products, metals,
machinery and other branches of electronic equipment.

Estonia’s main export partners are Sweden, Finland, Russia and Latvia and its main import partners are
Russia, Finland, Sweden and Germany. Estonia’s geographical position favours foreign trade in the region,
with the availability of ice-free ports with a developed railway and road infrastructure.

Balance of Payments

Historically, the current account of Estonia has been in deficit and financed through capital inflow in the form
of foreign direct investments and bank loans to the private sector. Since 2009, the current account balance
has remained positive due to increased exports.

Year 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Current account balance/GDP
(DT CONL.) ettt -15.3 -17.2 -9.7 4.5 3.6

Source: Bank of Estonia
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TAXATION

The following summary describes Estonian tax consequences to Noteholders. It is a general summary and
should not be considered as a comprehensive description of all the tax considerations which may be relevant
to a decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Notes. Purchasers of the Notes should consult with their tax
advisers as to the consequences of holding or transferring Notes under the tax laws of the respective country
of which they are resident for tax purposes.

The summary herein regarding taxation is based on the laws in force in Estonia as of the date of this
Prospectus and are subject to any changes in law occurring after such date, which changes could be made
on a retroactive basis.

Taxation of interest
Estonian Resident Noteholders

Pursuant to Article 17 (1) of the Estonian Income Tax Act 1999, as amended (the EITA), income tax at the
rate of 21 per cent. is charged on all interest received by natural persons who are resident in Estonia. Income
tax payable in respect of interest payments to be made to Estonian residents are to be withheld by the
Company. The Company will not withhold income tax if the Estonian resident Noteholder, who is a natural
person, has notified the Company that the interest was received on financial assets acquired for money held
in an investment account as specified in Article 17 (2) of the EITA.

In general, interest income earned by resident legal entities is not subject to income tax. Such income is
included in their profits and taxed upon distribution of profit pursuant to the respective procedures.

Non-resident Noteholders

The Company generally does not withhold any income tax on interest payments to non-residents i.e. non-
resident legal persons, who have not registered a permanent establishment in Estonia, and natural persons.
However, as specified by Article 29 (7) of the EITA, if the interest payment significantly exceeds the market
rate interest (payable on similar debt obligations, both at the occurrence of the debt obligation and payment
of interest), then income tax must be withheld on the exceeding amount at the rate of 21 per cent. by the
Company. The exceeding amount is the difference between the interest received and the interest payable
according to the market conditions on similar debt obligation.

If a convention for the avoidance of double taxation and the prevention of fiscal evasion with respect to taxes
on income and on capital (Double Taxation Treaty) limits taxation of interest income, the limitations of the
Double Taxation Treaty apply.

In Estonia, the limitations arising from a Double Taxation Treaty apply if the Noteholder has certified its
residence to the Estonian Tax and Customs Board.

The income earned by non-resident Noteholders may be subject to taxation in their country of residence.

Taxation of capital gains
Estonian Resident Noteholders

The income earned by resident individuals from the sale of Notes is taxed as profit from the transfer of
property which is subject to income tax at the rate of 21 per cent. A Noteholder has to declare the income
and pay the income tax.

Pursuant to Article 37 (1) of the EITA, a resident individual has the right to deduct certified expenses directly
related to the sale of Notes from the resident’s gain or to add such expenses to the resident’s loss. The gain
or loss derived from the transfer of Notes is the difference between the acquisition cost and the selling price
of the Notes sold.
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Different taxation rules apply for the sale of Notes if the Noteholder uses an investment account as specified
in Article 17 (2) of the EITA for acquiring Notes and deposits the proceeds from the transfer of Notes in the
investment account.

Income earned by resident entities from the sale of Notes is not subject to income tax. Such income is
included in their profits and taxed upon distribution of profits pursuant to relevant procedures.

Non-resident Noteholders

Income earned from the sale of Notes is not subject to income tax in Estonia for non-resident Noteholders.
The income earned by non-resident Noteholders may be subject to taxation in their country of residence.

EU Savings Directive

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, each Member State is required
to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income)
paid by a person within its jurisdiction to, or collected by such a person for, an individual resident in that
other Member State or to certain limited types of entities established in that other Member State. However,
for a transitional period, Luxembourg and Austria are instead required (unless during that period they elect
otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such payments (the ending of such transitional
period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements relating to information exchange
with certain other countries). A number of non-EU countries and territories including Switzerland have
adopted similar measures (a withholding system in the case of Switzerland).

The European Commission has proposed certain amendments to the Directive, which may, if implemented,
amend or broaden the scope of the requirements described above.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, Nordea Bank Finland Plc and Swedbank AB (publ) (together, the Joint
Lead Managers) have, pursuant to a Subscription Agreement (the Subscription Agreement) dated 7 July
2011, jointly and severally agreed to subscribe or procure subscribers for the Notes at the issue price of
98.812 per cent. of the principal amount of Notes. The Issuer has agreed to pay the Joint Lead Managers a
combined management and underwriting commission, and will also reimburse the Joint Lead Managers in
respect of certain of their expenses, and has agreed to indemnify the Joint Lead Managers against certain
liabilities, incurred in connection with the issue of the Notes. The Subscription Agreement may be
terminated in certain circumstances prior to payment of the Issuer.

United States

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions
exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

The Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S.
tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 and regulations thereunder.

Each Joint Lead Manager has agreed that, except as permitted by the Subscription Agreement, it will not
offer, sell or deliver the Notes (a) as part of their distribution at any time or (b) otherwise until 40 days after
the later of the commencement of the offering and the Closing Date within the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, U.S. persons and that it will have sent to each dealer to which it sells any Notes during
the distribution compliance period a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and
sales of the Notes within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons. Terms used
in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering, an offer or sale of Notes within the United
States by any dealer that is not participating in the offering may violate the registration requirements of the
Securities Act.

United Kingdom
Each Joint Lead Manager has represented and agreed that:

(a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be
communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of
Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Notes in
circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer; and

(b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything
done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Republic of Estonia

The offer of the Notes has not been and will not be registered under the Estonian Securities Market Act of
Estonia of 2001, as amended (the Securities Market Act) as a public offering. Accordingly, each Joint Lead
Manager has represented and agreed that it will not offer or sell any Notes, directly or indirectly, in Estonia
or to or for the benefit of any resident of Estonia (which term as used in this paragraph means any person
resident in Estonia, including any corporation or other entity incorporated under the laws of Estonia), or to
others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Estonia or to a resident of Estonia except in
compliance with the Securities Market Act and any other applicable laws or regulations of Estonia.
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General

No action has been taken by the Issuer or any of the Joint Lead Managers that would, or is intended to, permit
a public offer of the Notes in any country or jurisdiction where any such action for that purpose is required.
Accordingly, each Joint Lead Manager has represented, warranted and agreed that it will not, directly or
indirectly, offer or sell any Notes or distribute or publish this Prospectus or any other offering material
relating to the Notes in any country or jurisdiction except under circumstances that will, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations and all offers and sales
of Notes by it will be made on the same terms. Persons into whose hands this Prospectus comes are required
by the Issuer and the Joint Lead Managers to comply with all applicable laws and regulations in each country
or jurisdiction in which they purchase, offer, sell or deliver Notes or possess, distribute or publish this
Prospectus or any other offering material relating to the Notes, in all cases at their own expense.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Authorisation

1. The issue of the Notes was duly authorised by a resolution of the Supervisory Board of the Issuer
dated 15 December 2010.

Listing and admission to trading

2. Application has been made to the UK Listing Authority for the Notes to be admitted to the Official
List and to the London Stock Exchange for such Notes to be admitted to trading on the London Stock
Exchange’s regulated market. The listing of the Notes is expected to be granted on or about 12 July
2011, subject only to the issue of the Temporary Global Note.

The total expenses related to the admission to trading of the Notes are expected to be approximately
£4.200.

Clearing Systems

3. The Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (which
are the entities in charge of keeping the records). The ISIN for this issue is XS0645947457 and the
Common Code is 064594745. The WKN for this issue is AIGTC2.

The address of Euroclear is Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., 1 Boulevard du Roi Albert II, B-1210 Brusssels
and the address of Clearstream, Luxembourg is Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, 42 Avenue JF
Kennedy, L 1855 Luxembourg.

No significant change

4. There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer since 31 March
2011 and there has been no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the Issuer
since 31 December 2010.

Litigation

5. The Issuer has not been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any
such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Issuer is aware) in the 12 months
preceding the date of this document which may have, or have had in the recent past a significant effect
on the Issuer’s financial position or profitability.

Auditors

6. The auditors of the Issuer are AS PricewaterhouseCoopers (the Auditors), who have audited the
Issuer’s financial statements as at and for each of the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 (the Financial Statements) in accordance with the International Standards on
Auditing, and issued an unqualified audit report on those Financial Statements.

The business address of the Auditors is Parnu mnt 15, 10141 Tallinn, Estonia. The Auditors have no
material interest in the Issuer.

The Auditors have given and have not withdrawn their written consent to the inclusion of their report
in this document in the form and context in which it appears. The Auditors have authorised the
contents of that report for the purposes of Prospectus Rule 5.5.4R(2)(f) and have taken all reasonable
care to ensure that the information contained in this report is, to the best of their knowledge, in
accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.
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U.S. tax

7. The Notes and Coupons will contain the following legend: “Any United States person who holds this
obligation will be subject to limitations under the United States income tax laws, including the
limitations provided in Sections 165(j) and 1287(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.”

Documents Available

8. For the period of 12 months following the date of this Prospectus, copies of the following documents
will be available for inspection from the specified office of the Paying Agent for the time being in
London:

(a)  the constitutional documents of the Issuer (with an English translation thereof);

(b)  the audited financial statements of the Issuer in respect of the financial years ended 31
December 2009 and 31 December 2010 together with the audit reports in connection therewith.
The Issuer currently prepares audited accounts on an annual basis;

(c)  the unaudited interim financial statements of the Issuer for the period ended 31 March 2011
(prepared in accordance with the Estonian State Assets Act, not IFRS);

(d)  the Agency Agreement; and

(e)  the Temporary Global Note and Permanent Global Note.

Joint Lead Managers transacting with the Issuer

9. Certain of the Joint Lead Managers and their affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage,
in investment banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may perform services to the
Issuer and its affiliates in the ordinary course of business.

Yield

10.  On the basis of the issue price of the Notes of 98.812 per cent. of their principal amount, the yield on
the Notes is 4.829 per cent. on an annual basis.

The yield is calculated on the Closing Date of the basis of the issue price of the Notes. It is not an
indication of future yield.

Interests of natural legal persons involved in the issue of the Notes

11.  Save for the commissions described under “Subscription and Sale” above, so far as the Issuer is aware,
no person involved in the issue of the Notes has an interest material to the offer.
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Statements of Financlal Position
i Moumands of Estonian kroons Note 31220010 31122000 01.01. 2008
ASSETS
Current asssls
Cash and cash equivalents 8 626,866 o 0
Trade and other recoivables 7 342,159 208,568 192,248
Total current assets 880,025 208,568 192,248
Hon-current assets
Froparty, plant and equipment ] 5,544,548 5,516,156 5,348,928
Intangitle assels 10 48,497 31,001 17,837
Toital non-current assals 5,593,045 5,547,157 5,364 785
TCOTAL KSSETY 8,562,070 5,755,725 5,557,011
LIABILITIES
Current (iabilities
Borrowings 1 0 2535838 388,121
Trada and other payables 12 568,608 273838 208,722
Total current Habilities 568,608 3,209,578 582,843
Non-curment lkabilities
Baorrowings 1 2,005,403 0 2,045 588
Dotorred incoeme 13 349,385 346,541 319,961
Prapaymants retabed to govermment grants 13 237,033 0 o
Total non-current liabilities 3,401,811 348,541 2,366,547
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,080,519 3,558,217 2,950,390
EQUITY
Share capital 14 2,190,524 2,100,000 2,100,000
Statulory resarve capial 14 44,039 44,039 30,261
Retained samings 14 266,988 55,4568 467.360
TOTAL EQUITY 2,501,851 2,196,508 2,587,821
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 6,562,070 5,755,725 5.557.011
Tha notes on pages B (o 37 are an integral part of these linancial staements.
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Elering AS (Formerly Elering 0U)

2008 and 2010 Annual Report

Statements of Comprehensive Income

i of Estorran Aroons Note 2010 2000
Ravenua 15 1,360,420 1181393
Othar income 186 1,348 283
Goods, raw materials and sanices 17 580,753 -452.203
Cither oparaling expenses 18 -48,045 47 B8
Stalf costs 19 58,521 56574
Depraciation, amorisation and impaimmant 8,10 ~J55 872 ~304,828
Other axpanses 20 649 770
Oporating profit 224,937 318,334
Financa incoma 1,368 Q
Finance costs 21 414,774 108,736
Prefit bafors income tax 211,518 200,568
Income tax expense 14 0 127610
Profit for the year 211,519 81,878
Total comprehensive incoma fior the year 211,519 81979

The noles on pages & 10 37 ane an integral part of thesa financial satements.
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Elering AS (Formerly Elering OU)
2009 and 2010 Annual Report

Cash Flow Statements

I toysanes af Estorsan kroons Note 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating sctivities

Profit balors incoma tax 211,519 200,598
Adjusimants for:

= Prodit from sale of property, plant and equipmant 16 381 -244
- Deprociasion, amoetsation and impairment a10 369,872 304,826
- [nberest axpensas 21 114,874 109,716
= Inbanest incoms 1,334 0
Changes in working capital:

,MwaWHHhm 7 136,568 13,084
aMHmmwmnm 12 258,143 56,947
;mnmm from connection and othar sarvica 13 2 844 26.580
wwmﬂmmmm 818,189 704,338
Incorne tax pad i 0 27618
Intarest paid 21 87,501 108,716
Imbarest recoived 1,081 1]
Net cash used In operating activities 720,748 457,008
Cash flows from investing activities

wﬂm.mwwmm 8,10 408,362 490,408
Foraign grams bo acquing non-curmant asseis 13 23T 03 1]
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipmant 5,059 365
Net cash used in investing activities -166,300 490,043
Cash flows from financing activities

Aapayment ol short-tarm barrawings 11 2,045,586 0
Mist change in overdralt 1" -380,252 503,13
Long-lerm bank lcans recaived 1 2,908, 732 1]
Contribution to share capital 14 90,524 0
Dividonds paid 14 0 480,002
Nat cash used In financing activities 63418 23,039
Net increase/decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 528,858 ]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8 o ]
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the year 8 626,866 0

The noes on pages & 1o 37 are an integral part of thase financial statemants.
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Elering AS (Formerly Elering O)

2009 and 2010 Annual Report

Statements of Changes in Equity

Share Retained
2 capital fﬂm earnings Toisl

A ihoumands of Esonian kroons

Balance a= &t 1.1.2008 2,100,000 30,261 45T 360 2.597.621
Comprshansive inooma lor financial year 1] 0 897 B1.979
Trarsders (o statubory reserna capital 5] 13,778 13,778 a
Dividonds paid a a -4, 092 ~480,002
Balance as at 31.12.2000 2,100,000 44,009 58 489 2,199,508
Contributicn o shans capital i), 5 1] 0 0,534
Comprehansive incoma lor financial year L] 1] 211,519 211,519
Balance as at 31.12.2010 2,190,524 44,038 266,984 2,501,581

Mare detailed information on shase capital and othar squity Sams is sef out in Mole Note 14,

The nobes on pages 6 1o 37 ane an inegral part of thess fnarcial statements,
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Elering AS (Formerly Elering
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 1. Elering AS (Formerly Elering OU) and its Operations

mmwummmwmmmwmhmdn
Company in connection with the planned issue of debt nates. 2010 statulory Snancial statements of the Company
prepared in accordance with inismational Financial Reporting Standards as adopled by the Eurcpean Union lor the
fing in the Estonian Commercial Registrar ("Statutory Annual Accounts™ were issued on 11 Aprll 2011, These
Enancial staternants do nod differ from the Statutory Annual Accourts apar rom the additional discicsure on segment
reporting mnd aifar minos disclogung additicns,

Elering AS (the Company] is domiciled in the Republc of Eslonia. The Company's registared address is Kadaka toe
42, 12915 Tallinn, Estonia. The Company's principal business acthity is electricity fransmissicn wilhin the Rapublic of
Estonia. The economic activities of the Company are regulated by Essorian legisiation, which stipulates that the
Estonian Compalition Baasd reguiates the Company's sconomic activiies, monilors its oparations and lixes the tariffs
for the iransmission sarvices,

From 27.01.2070, the scle sharshokder of the Company is the Republic of Esionia, untl then, the Company's
immadiale parent company was Eesli Enorgia AS whosa sols sharshalder is She Rispublic of Estonia.

Tha Managsmsnt Board approved these financial siatemands ai 11 Apeil 2011, Pursuant o the Commsrcial Code of
the Republic of Estonia, the annual report shall be preserded far approval o the Compary's Supervsory Board and
thiz Gemeral Maating of Sharsholdors,

Mote L. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicles

Eases of preparation. Thess fnancial statemonds have besn prapared in sccordance with Infernational Financial
Raporing Stardards (IFAST) a5 adopled by the Europaan Unien undisr the historical cost convention. The princinal
accouniing policies applied in the prepamation of hess financial stalemants are set out boiow. Thess policies have
bean corsitently applied io a8 te pericds presented, unisas oiharmss staled,

The Company changed its financial year in 2008. Bafore that, the Company's firancial year lasied from 1 Apsil to 31
March. The purpose of the change was to make financial yaars coincide with the calendar year, The Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 31.12.2000 presented the results of operatians for the perod of 1.04.2008-
31,12 2006 (§ months) and ihs comparative pencd 1.04.2008-31.03.2000 (12 moniha), Thess financial siaiemants
present the resulls of cpemtans lor tha periods 1.01.2006 - 31.12.2008 and 1.04.2010 - 31.12.2010, Lo. the length of
the comparaiha period has bean changed as companed 10 the pericd preseniad in the finsncial stalements lor 2000,
The comparative period was changed 1o bs 12 morths long in order ensure batier comparability of the Sinancial
sladements across linencial years.

Operating segments. The chiol operating decision makar has been idertified as the Management Board, who is
respongibls lor allocaling resources and assessing pedormance of the Company. The Mansgemen Board has
determined that the acthilies of the Company form a single apenating segmant. The inlemal reporting provided o tha

Initakalisearitud ainult identifitiearimisels
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Managemani Board has baen prepared wsing the accounting polickes and presentalion consisiant with those used in
prparaton of tha Snancial stalemants.

nmndmmmmmummm is tha Estanian knaon, All amours
in {hase financial stalements ane presanied in thousands of Estonian kroona ["EEK"), undess otherwise stated,

Foreign currency transiation. Forsign currency randactions are fransiated into the functional currency (sing the
axchangs rates of the Bank of Esforia prevailing at the dabies of the iransactions. Forsign exchangs gains and losses
reduling from fhe seiffiement of such iraresctions and fom the ranalaiion of monsiary sssels and Eabdities
danaminabed n foregn curmencios al year-and exchangs rabes e mecognised in the incoms siaisments.

Financial asssis. The purchases and sabes of fnancial assets are recogrised al the rade date — e dabe &t which
ihet Company commits io purchase or sall & cariain financial assel. Financial assets are demscognissd whan the rights
1o receive cash flows from tha imeaimants have eupired or have boen ransbermed and the Company has translerred
substartially all risks and revards of owneship,

Depanding on The purposa for which financisl assets wers acquingd as well as management's intentions, Bnancial
assets are classilied inlo the lollowing categories al initial recognition:

= financial asssts &t fair valoe Shiough prosE of loss:

= lgans and recaivables;

= haid-io-masurity invesimanis;

= nvallabie-tor-sale inancial assets.

Al 31 Decarnbar 2010 (a5 wall as 31 Decamber 2000 and 1 January 2006}, the Company had no other classas of
financial assets than those classfisd undar ihe calegony lcans and receivables.

Loans and receivnbies are unguoted non-garfvalive linancial axsats wish lixed o determinable paymants othar than
1hose thal the Companry inlends to =all in tha near berm. Loans and receivables are iniialy recognised af falr valua
plus transaction costs. Afler inifial recegrsion, loans and recelvables ane accounied for ol amortised cosl uaing tha
efiactive inlerest rals mathod uniless he payment date falls within 30 days.

The Company asssssss o ihe and ol sach reparting penod whather thena is objective evidence thal a financial sssai
i mpaired. A financial assel is impaired ard impasmont losses ot incured only i thers s objactive evidence of
impainmant a5 a result of ona cr mons evanta thal cocumed afer the inifial recognition of the assel [a oss event’) and
that lcss event jor svants) has an impact on ihe estimaled futue cash fiows of the financial assel or group of Bnancial
assets fhat can be roflably estimated. The crbers that the Company uvses o delesming that thers ls chisctive
evidence of an impairmant loss include: ssgnificant financial dificulties of the debior, probability that the deblor will
enter bankrupicy or financial reorganization, and a bheach of conbradt, such as a defaull or delinguency in paymants
for more than B0 days.

Tha amount of the loss i the dfarence between the carmying amount and the present valus of sstimaled future cash
fcws discounted af the assefs ofignal eflectve interest rale. The carmyng amount of iha assst is reduced Hirough
the use of an allowancs account, and the amount of the impakment lcss ks recognised in the incoms atatsmans,

Lincolectible inans ard recetvables are wiitten off againet the related allowancs sccount.

Wlhﬂ identifEesrmseks
Initialied purpose of hhgﬂﬂuun
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Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash squivaianss inchada cash in hand, deposits hald af call with banis, and
cihwr short-larm Rghly Bguid Fvesiments with onginal matusities of hros manths o less. Cash and cash squivalanis
ane casrind Al amartised cost using the affective inleres) mathod,

Prepayments. Frapayments are caried af cost less & provision lor impairment. A prepayment s classiied as nan-
currert whan the goods or services relating io the prepayment sre expacted 1o be cbiained afiar one year, or whaen
hmmummmuuhMumwmmw
i acquire B3els are transfeTed fo the carmying amount of the assef once the Company has obtained contred of tha
azset and It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assat will fiow 10 the Comparry. Other
prepayments ara weittan off ia profit of loss when the goods or services relating 1o the prepaymants are received. |1
theda ks an indicalion thal the asssts, goods or sarvices relating o & prapayment will ot be recahsed, the camying
amount of the prepayment is witten down accordingly and & coresponding impaimmant loss s recogrised in profit or
oS,

mmﬂwmmwmnmumhmw
depeeciation and any impairment kosses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly alirbutabile 10 the
acquisition of the Rerma. Cost incluciss bosrowang cos®s Incurred on specilic of genedal funds bormwed 1o financs
donstruction of gualifying asssis,

Subsequent costs ane included in the assel's camying amount o recogrised A8 A saparate assel, a3 appropriate, only
when il i probabie that kuture economic benefits associatod with the flam will fiow Io the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The camying amount of the replaced par is denscogrised. A olber repais snd
mainfanance costs are charged fo the income statemants during the financial period in which they ane incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Deprociaton of other itema of property, plant and equipment is calculaied using the siraight.
line method 1o allocate their cost 1o their residusl vaiues over heir estmased uswtyl ives:

Usphal vern in vear
Huslangs 25-40
Facises - aleckicily ransmission lines 30-60
Ot lacilities 10:30
Machinery and equipiment - sleciricity trinsmission equipmant 7-25
Cehar proparty, plant and equipment 320

The residual vaiue of an &ssel is the estimated amount that the Compary would cumently obtain from disposal of the
asse] ety the eslimaled costs of disposal. # the assal were aiready of the ags and in the conditicn axpacied al the
&nd of its useful o, The assels’ residual valuss and uselul lives &ne reviowed, and adjusied if appropriabe, 81 each
balance shest date,

Al each reporting dale managemant aesesses whather thers is any indicasion of impalrmant of property, plant and
aquepmaent. || any such indication oxisis, managemani estimaies the recoverable amount. which is detaamined as the
highar of sn asset's fair valus lgss coste b oed and e valus in use. The carying amount i reduced fo Tha
recenvrable amount and the impalmaent koss is recognisad in the intome statements. An impalmmant loas recognissd
for &n asset in prior yoars is reversed whers aporopriade if (here has been o change in the estimates used io
delerming the asset's value in use or fair value less cosis fo s,

Initsialissoritud ainult identifisesrimiseks
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Gaing and iossen on dsposais and writs-offs cetermined by comparing procoeds with the camying amouni are
recograsad in prodll or loss.

intangible assets. An intanghlo aFset is intally recognised al #s cost. comprizing B3 purchase price, ary directly
atinbutable sxpanditure on preparing the asset for s intended Lse and bomowing costs that relate i assets that take
a substardial pariod of trme io ged ready for use. Afler initial recognition, an intangibile assat is carried at #s acquisition
coat less any pccumulaied amortisation and impairment losses.

Asquired soltware Ecences are capitalsed on tha basis of the costs incurmsd b5 Bequirs and Bring Bhaem o use.

Personal right of use. Paymants made kor rights of superficies and sorviudes mesting ihe criteria for recognition as
intargible assels are recognised as intangible assets, The costs related Yo rights of use of kand ane depreciated
starding 1o the contract pencd, nod sxceeding 100 years,

Irtangibles assels are amortised ussng tha siraight-line meihod ower Sair useiul lves:

Lisoful lves in years
Soffware liconces A yoars
Parsonal rights of uas 50-100 yoars

if impaired, tha cammying smound ol intangible assels is wifion down io tha highar of valus in use and fnir valus less
costs o 3ol

Impairment of non-financiasl sassels. Land and sssats that s subjsct 1o depreciasion/amortisaBon ars reviewed lor
impairmart whanever events or changes in circumstances indecale (hat tha canmying amount may not be recoverstle.
An impairmant loss is recognised for the amount by which the assels carying amouni excesds s recoverable
mmourt. The recoverable amount s the higher of an sssel’s tair valus less costs o sell and value in use, For the
purpases of assessing impaimaent, assets ane grouped al (he lowest lovels for which there an separately identiiable
cash figas (cash-genarating units). Mon-financial assets that suflered an impairmant ices are revdewsd lor possible
roversal of impaimment al sach reportng date.

Leases. Loases in which & significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownarship are mtained by the lessor are
classified o3 opemling leases. Payments made of receéhwed unded opemling leases are charged 1o the income
slatomants on a straight-ine basis ovar the period of The lease.

Financial [iabilities. Financial linbiities have the following measuremant categories: (a) heid for Irading which also
includes financial deftvalives and (b} olher financisl kablites. The Company has financlal labiites only in the
calegony of ‘oftwr tnancial labilities’,

Other financial iabiities are initially recognised at fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred and are subsequantly
caied at amortised cost The amortised cost of currant lisblities normally equais their nominal value; thersicre
current liabiites are siated in ihe balancs ahesl in Seir redemplion valus. Non-cument Rabilies are subsaquenily
caried al amorised cost; any diferencs batwesn the proceeds (net of fransaction costs) and The redemplion vitlus is
recogrised in the incoma stalemants over he period of the bomowings uaing the effective intaresd rate mathod,

A firancial Sabiity |3 classified as cument whan it is due wilhin 12 montha after e balance shest dabe o e
Company doss ol have an uncondSonal right io deler the payment for lenger ihan 12 monihs aler the balance
initaipllsearitud alvull identifitseerimisels
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shasi date. Borowings with a due dale of 12 months or less aftar the balance shesl dabe thal are refinanced inta
non-curfant bomowings affer the balance sheet date but before the spproval of the annual report, are classified ns
curfant. Borrowings that the lender has e right 19 recall dus io the violalion of terms specified In The contracl. are
s clasadfind a8 cumen labdites.

Offsetling. Financial assets and Sabilies are olisal and the nat amourd i reporied in the balance sheet only when
hers i a logally enforceabla fight to olfset the recognised amaunts, and thers ta an intention o eithar saltle on & rel
basis, or ko realse the assel and ssttie the liabdity simullanacusty,

Provisions and contingent Nabilibies. Provisions for liabdities and charges are non-financial liabfities of uncertain
fiming or amount. They are accrsed when the Company has a present legal o corstructive obilgation as a result of
past ovents, i is probabie that an outfiow of rescurces ambodying economic banafits will be required 1o ssftie the
obiigation, and & refiable estimate of the amount of the obligaSon can be made,

Cihar possibio or prasant obligations arsing from past svents bul whose sefflement is nol probabla or the: smeunt of
which canndt be meaaured with sufficient reliability are discloasd as conlingar Eabilibes in the notes o The finsncial
stalemenis.

Development costs. Deveiopment costs are costs that are incumed in applying resaasch findings for the
developmani of speciic new products or processes. Develcpment coats are capsaised # ol of the crilosa for
recognition specifiad in [AS 38 have been met. Capitaised development costs are amorised over the penod during
wiich ihe products are expected to be used. Expenses relaled io research caried out for collecting new scientific or
technical information and iraining costs am nol capitafised.

Share capital. Ordinary shares are classified s eguity. The Company does nof have any preference shares.
Incramental costs directly attributabile 1o the issus of new shares are recognised as a reduction of equity. Ary axcess
ol the tair value of consideration received over e par vatlus of shares issued is reconded as share premium in aquity.

Dividends. Dividencs are recorded &= a Esbility and deducied from equity In tha periad in which thoy are declared,
Any dhvidends declared nher tha balance shoet date and beforn tha linancial siatsments are authorsed for issua ar
disciosed in (ha note “Events aftsr the Balancs Sheat Date®,

Statulory reserve capiial. Siatutory resenve capial is formed io comply with the requirements of the Commercial
Code. Resarve capilal is larmed Irom annual nel profil aliocations. During sach Bnancial year, af Isast cne-twaniiath
of tha net profit shall be entared in reserve capial, undil reserve capial reaches one-lentt of sharg capital. Fossnm
capdal may b ued 1o cover & logs, of 1o increaso shane capital. Payments shall nol be made o shamboldoers from
TENaryE CApdal.

Revenus recopnifion. Revenus is mesured al the fair vahus of tha conaideration received or recehvable, net of VAT
and descolnts.

Aevenus brom sales of poods is recognised at ihe point of Fansher of risks and rewands of cwnership of the goods,
normally when the goods. ane shipped.

Sales of services are recognisad in the accourting period in which the services are rendsred, by refarencs 1o stags of
complation of he specific tmnsaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided a8 & propoion of (he iotal
Services 1o bo provided. Thas sales of network services and balancing anangy Tall inio this calsgosy,

Initsialigearitud alnull identifimeerimmaehs
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Becogniion of connection fegs, When connecting 1o the slecirnicity netwark, the cllents must pay a connection fos
based on the actual costs of infrastructuns 10 be buill in order to connect 1o the natwork, The revenus from connacaion
toes is delerred and recognised as income evenly aver the estimaled cusiomer relasonship period. The amaortisabion
mﬂmn:ﬁmh-ummmmuuhmﬂdhhmm-w
defamed incoma.

Iciierest incoms i recognised on a time-peopartion basis using the affective interest method,

Recognition of government granis. Govammenl granks are reoognised al fair valus whan thers 1§ & reasonatis
mluhﬁmmdmwmlhmmummmﬂnmﬂ
be recefved. The government grants are recognised in profit or loss on & sysSamalic basis over the periods In which
the Company expenses the related costs for which the grants are inended 1o compansate.

Government grants are presented in the statements of financial possion using the gross method, according 1o which
the govarmmant prant is recognised as deferred ncoma The acquined asset is depreciated and the grant s crodded 1o
incoma over the eatimatsd usahd Ble of the ssset.

If the government grant is receivad in the form ol a trarsder of a non-monetary assst, the grant and the assel are
recognisesd af the tair valuo of the aesat tranaterned.

Subsidies lo alectriclly producers. Tha Electricity Market Act chisges the Company o participate in suppering
maschanis ot fangwible and eificiont cogeneraiion eleciricly producers. The slecinicity consumer bears the costs of
Suppod in proporson 1o the volume of natwork senicss consumed. The Company collects subsidies on behall of
elighis producers and pays it out io fham.

In accordance with current principles, the Company prepanes an estimate of the amount of subsidies for the lollowing
calancar year, based on esfimales on which renewable eleciricity producers are eligible for the subsidy (critaria an

reguiated by the state). the amount of slsciricity produced by these producess, and the amount of netwark services 1o
be provaded 1o the end user in Estonia. The Company uses these estimates o delermine the charge of subsidy for
ihe loliowing calandar year par KWh (kilowati-houwr) of network senvices, taking info accourd any diforonco batwaen

estimated and sctual amounts of subsidies paid during the previous period (Novembar through Ccicbar).

The cusiomars are charped according 10 the estimated chargs par KWh, Dus i the differant reascns the actual
amounts paid oul and received as subsidies always diffor from the estimalsd amounts. Cver or undar colecisd
subgiches arw shown in the balancs sheet as either Trade and olher payablss (in case of supius) or Trade and othar
recaivabies (in case of daficil). Thass balances arg taken ity account whan delsfmining the chargs for tha nex
pericd a3 described above, Colledting and paying of subsidies has no impact on the comprshenshva incoma of the
Company. See also Note 122

Employes bonefits. Wages, sslaries, contributions o the stals parsion, paid annual leave, sich leave and bonusss,
hlong Wi socal and unemployment taxes am moognised in the income siatemants in the year in which the
BASOCIE|S] Services are rendered by the employess of the Comparty. Any amounts unpaid by the balance sheet date
B recognised as a liabdity,

Indtsiaalidiniials [ i
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I!mhmmmmmmmmmwumunu
expected, the Company wil recogrised a kabiity (accrued sxpense) in the amount of larecast companaation, from
which all amounts already paid will be deducied,

Income tax. According to the Income Tax Act, the annual profit eamed by entities is not taed in Estonia. Coporatn
mwummmwmmmuummmm
disbursements and adjusiments of the transfer price. From 1 January 2008, the tax rale on the nel dividends paid out
of retained eamings is 21/79. The comporate income tax arising from the paymant of dividends s recogrised as a
Iﬂrﬂmkmﬂmhhnﬂh%%ndﬂﬁ.“ﬁhmﬂhm
hﬁﬂﬂﬂnﬂﬂ-ﬂhﬂimdﬂmmuhmtuuhimmuhm%
the paymant of dividends,

mnnmuhmmmmwnmmmmqmm
the taxn bases ol asseis and their camying amounts and hance, no delermed income tax assels and liabdities arise, A
conbingent income tax Kabiity which would anse upon the payment of dividands is not recognised in the balance
shaet. The maximum incoma tax Rabilty which would accompany the distribution of Compary's riained sarmings is
disciosad in the notes ko the linancial sisismaenis.

Vaive added tax. Output value added tax related 10 sales is payable b lax authoriSies at ihe oarfer of (&) colaction
of receivables from cusiomens or (b defivery of goods or services 1o cusiomers. inpul VAT is generally recoverabis
agains! culpul VAT upon recespl ol the VAT imvaice. The tax authoriliss permill the ssttiement of VAT on & net Basis.

Other taxes in Estonia

Thi loliowing iaxes had an aflect on iha Company's expenses

Tax Tax rate
Social security tax 33% of the paid payrol Io employees and fringe banalits
Unamoliemedt Vasrencs oy from 01.08.2008: 1-4% o ha Dy padd 1 eyess,
Prings benet income tax 21i70 of tringe benetas pad o employees
Land tax 1-2.5% on taxable value of land pet anrum
Excise x o0 ehctricty Lintil 28.02 2010 50 kroons per MWh of sleciricity, from

01,03.2010: 70 keoons per MWh ol eleciricity

Corporale income tax on non-business related
DEDENEEE 21778 on ron-business relabsd axpenses

Mote 3. Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgements In Applying Accounting Palicies

The Compary makes estimales and assumptions thal atlect the ameunts recognised in the financial stalermants and
the camying amaunts of assets and labilities within the nexd inancial year. Estimales and judgements ar continually
evaluated and are based on Manageman’s expariance and other factors, including expectations of future avends thal
are beleved 1o be reasonable under the circumstances. Management also makes cerain judgements, apart from
those invohing estimations, in 1he process of applying the sccounting polcies. Judgements thal have tha most
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Wﬁﬂmhmmhﬂﬁwmwﬂ“hﬂmuﬂlw
adjustment ia the carmying amourt of assets and kabilities wilthin the noxt financial year include:

Revenue recognition (connection fees). Tha Company recognises all connection and cther sendce foes (MNote
mmum“nwmmm-nmm;mmu
m.mdmunnmmummmmmmﬂ
supply. the Company also has an angoing obligation 16 maindain the connection. Thus a new conneciion has no
stancalons valus wishout ongoing accass i his nEbwor.

The cusiomer relationship period s 20 years tased on managomant's estimale. In tha reporting pesiod, incoma fram
connection and ciher service fees totalied EEK 17,042 thousand (2008 EEX 15,453 thousand). ¥ the estimated
customar relafionafip perod were incroased by 25%. the annual income from cannection lees would decroase by
EEK 3.568 thousand (2008 EEK 3,007 thousand).

Useful Nves of property, plant and equipment. The estimated uselul lives of items of property, plant and
equipmient (Note Nole 8) aw based on managamean('s estimaies regarding The peniod during which ihe assal will ba
uzad, The estimation of economic lves = based on historical experience and fakes Mo consideration production
capacly and physical conditon of ihe nssels. Provious exporience has shewn that the actual uselul lives have
somédimes boen longar than (he astimates, In the reporting period, depreciation amounted to EEK 307,472 thousand
(2008 EEK 303,635 thousand]. If depreciation rales were incroased'decrensed by 20%, the deprciation chame lor
1he year would increasaidecraass by EEK 81,454 fousand (2005 EEK 60,728 thousand),

Hole 4. New sccounting proncuncamants

Adoption of new or revissd siandards and Interpretations

Fofigwing naw stanciards, amavdmanis io published stndands and inferprefanions bacams sffacive for the Company
frorn § Januay 2018

IFRIC 18, Transters of Assels from Cusiomers. Tha irerpretation clarifies the accounting for tranafers of assets
Irom cusiomens, namaly, the cecumatances in which fe definition of an assal b mat; the recogriion of the assel and
the measuremsant of it cost at inftial recogniion; the idenSfication of the separabely idenifabis ssnices (one or mom
Sefvices in exchangs for (he iransfarmad assel); the recognition of revenus, ard ihe acoounting for trarsiors of cash
Troem cuglcemers. The Company assassad the eflact of IFRIC 18 on recagnition of connection lees and concludad thal
the cument accouniing meihod (connection fees are amorsed inio incoma over the estimaled duration of the
cuslomar relationship) & in compiance with the principles of IFRIC 18, therelore, the intsrpretatien had no efect on
the financial stalemants.

Fofiowing new standards, amendments i putished standards and inferpretations becavne effactive for fhe Company
troen | Janisary 2010, but are nol relevant lor the Company’s aparations:
Impecvemarss 1o Intemational Financial Reporting Standarda, ssued in April 2009
= IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arangements
= IFRIC 15, Agreeemanis for the Construction of Roal Eatate
«  Embedded Dervatives - Amendmants i IFRIC 8 and LAS 39, issued in March 2009
«  IFRIC 18, Hedges of a Mot Imvwastmeant in & Foreign Operation

Initsialisearitisd ainult identifiSeerimisoks
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- IFRAIC 17, Distibutions of Nen-Cash Assots ko Ownars
- 1AS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Staterments, revised in Jaruary 2008
IFAS 3, Business Combinaticns, revised in January 2008

= Amendment lo IFRS 6, Nor-cument Assets Hald for Sale and Discontinued Oparaions {and consequential
amgndmants bo IFRS 1)

- Eligible Hedged Items—Amandment 1o 1AS 39

- IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Intermational Financial Rleparting Standards, revised in December 2008
- Gmoup Cash-settied Share-based Payment Transactions - Amandmants o IFRS 2

- Addtional Exsrptions for First-ime Adopters - Amendmants to IFRS 1

Adoption of now or revised standards and Interpretaiions belore their effective date:

Amendment fo IAS 24, Related Farty Disclosurss, issued in November 2009 (efective kor annual perods
beginning &t of after 1 January 2011). IAS 24 was revised in 2008 (a) the definiion of & ‘relsied party’ was simgiified,
it intendad meaning was clarifisd and soma inconsisiencies wore memoved from he definition, and [b) disclosurs
requiremants were reduced for public antities. Disclosures about related paries were prepared in sccordance with
tha roviaed LAS 24 in these financial stalsmants.

Mow or revised standards and interpretations not aarty adopted by the Company:

Foliowing new or amanded stanclards and infarpratations wave isaved and will bacoms elfective o the Company
frorm 1 January 2011 or lafer paviods and which the Company has nol sarly adopied

IFRS 8, Financial instruments Part 1: Classification and Measurement (stiective lor annual periods beginning at
or after 1 January 2013; not yeq adopted by the EU)L IFRS B issusd in November 2009 replaces thosa paris of IAS 30
refating fo the classification and measunement of financial xssets. IFAS 8 was further amonded in Ocicber 2010 to
address the classification and measurement of financial kabilSes. Key features ane a3 follows:

*  Financial assets are required to be clasafied into two measurement calegories: those fo be maasured
subsoquantly at lair value, and those ko be measured subsaguanity at amortised cost. The decision is fo ba mads &
initial recognition. The classification depends on the anity's business model for managing its financial inatraments
and the contractual cash fiow characteristics of the instruman.

*  An instrumant i subsequanily measured af amortsed cost only § i = & debt instrumend and both i} ha
objective of the eniity's businesa madel is 1o hold the asset 1o collect the contractual cash fows, and () the assat's
contractual cash fiows represent only paymaents of peincipal and interes! (that is, it has only “basic loan leatures™). Al
oifar debl instrumants & 16 be measured at fair valus through profit or oss,

AN equlty instruments are io be messured subsequanily at falr value. Equity instruments thal am hald lar
trading will be measured ot fair valus through prolit or loss, For all other equity investments, &n irmevocable slection
can be made al initial recognition, fo recognise unnealised and roafised inir value gairs and losses Brough olfr
comprehensive incoma rather than prolll o ioas. Theve is 10 be nd rocycling of fair value gaing and los$es 1o profit or
iag3. This sleclion may be made on an instrumant. by-instrument basis. Dividends ane o be prasented in profit or loss,
a8 fong as they reprasent a relum on imestmen.
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*  Most of the requiromants in [AS 39 for classfication and measursment of financial liabEtes wers caried
mmnmamwmhummuumumnmuwn
o cradif risk of financial linbiities designated as At fair value through prof or 083 in other comprahonene Incoma.

hthhmﬂhMHMMNWHMMHH
adoption by the Company.

wumwmmmammlmﬂmm
mww.mﬂm“m‘mmm%nwmrmmnm
imprevemnanits fave not yed bean adepied by tha ELT,

The improvemants consist of a mixture of substantive changes and clarflicaticns in the lofiowing standards and
inlerpreiations: IFRS 1 was amanded (1) bo alow previous GAAP carrying wilue to be used as desmed cost of an flam
of proparty, plant and equipnent or an intangible asss! if that Aem was used in operations subject b rale regulation,
(i) to aliow &n event driven revaluation io be used as deamed cost of property, plant and equipment even if the
revaluation oocurs during o period covered by the fimt FAS financial statemants and (§) to require & firs-Sme
ndopler fo axplain changes in accounling polcies or in the IFRS 1 exemplions between its first IFRS interim repon
ind its frst IFRS financial statements; FAS 3 was amanded (i) 10 roquine measurement al fair value (uniess ancther
measuremernt basss is requined by other (FRS standards) of non-controlling interests that ane nol presant ownarship
intarest or do not anditly the Rolder %o & proporfionabes shane of nel assets in the event of liqguidason, (1) o provide
guidance on acquires’s share-Dased payment arangements that wera not repiaced or wers voluntarly repiaced a3 a
result of a business combination and (i) o clarify thal e contingent considerations from busingss combinaBions that
occured bafors the sfactive date ol revised IFRS 3 (issued in January 2008) will be accounied lor in Bcoordanes
with Bhe guidance in the pravious varsion o IFRS 3; IFRS 7 was amanded to danly ceriain disclosung requiismants,
in particular {ij by adding an explicit emphasis on the interaction between gualtaiive and quaniabive disconuses
about the nature and extent of financial risks, (§) by removing the requirsment 1o disciose the camying amount of
MWHMWWhMHHM{I]hMHWH
disciose tair value of colliensl by & more genenal requinement 1o discioss its financial effect, and (v} by clarilying that
an anlity sheuld discioss the amounl ol forecicsed colixieval hald a1 the reporting date and not ihe amount obiained
during iha reparting panod; |AS 1 was amanded 1o clarty thal the components of the statemants of changes in equity
include profit or loss, other comprahensive incoms, tolal comprshentive incoma and tanasctions with owners and
that an aralysis of olher comprabaraive incomea by fem may be presented in the notes; [AS 27 wes amended by
clariying ihe transition rules jor amardmants o 1AS 21, 28 and 31 made by the revised IAS 27 (a8 amended in
January 2008) [AS 34 was amanded o add addiional examples of significant events and ransaclions. requiting
disciosurs in & condensed inlarim Francasl report, including transfers botwean tha levals of kair valus hierchy,
changes in classiication ol linancinl asasts or changes in business or sconomiz enviranment that alfect the fair
vallises of the antity's financial instrusmanis; and IFRIC 13 was amended fo clarily massuremaent of fair valus of award
credits. Th Compary is curmently assesaing ha impact of the amended standard on B3 financial statemants,

New or revised standards and inferpretations thal are nof ywl affective and nof earfy sdopled by fhe Company, and
nol expecied io have & significant effect on the Company’s Bnancial sialements:

Disclosures— Transfers of Financial Assets - Amendmants to IFRS 7 (ofioctee lor annual pericds beginning at
of &ftar 1 July 2011; not yel adoplad by tha ELI,

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assels - Amendment fo A5 12 (effective far annual pedicds beginning at
or aller 1 January 2012 not yel adopled by the EL),

Initsialisearitud ainult identifitseerimiseks
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Jevere Hyperinfistion and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters - Amandment fo IFRS 1 (efectve
fer annual pericds baginning a1 or afier 1 July 201 1; nod yel adopled by tha ELI),

Classification of Rights issues - Amendmant o [AS 32, issved in Ociober 2000 (efectve for annual pericds
beginning &l or afar 1 February 20100,

IFRIC 18, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equily instruments |stectve far annual pariods teginnng at or
after 1 Juby 2010),

Prepaymants of & Minimum Funding Requirement — Amendmaent fo IFRIC 14 (afective for annual ponods
beginning at or afler 1 January 2011).

Limited Exemplion from Comparative IFRS 7 Disciosures for First-ime Adapters - Amendment fo IFRS 1
(eflactive lor annual perods beginning at of afer 1 July 2010). The Company doss not expect the amendmant o
harve any material efloct on Bs linancial stalamants.

FRE 10, Consolicated fnancial statements; IFRS 11, Joint arrangements; IFRS 12, Disciosure of interests in
other entities; IAS 27, Ssparsle fnancial statements (revissd 2011); and IAS 28, lovesimonts in sesociries
wm—mm:wmmnmmwmwlhnmmumm
sdopbed by he ELI)

Mote & Financlal Risk Mansgemant

Tha risk managamand function is performed at the Company in accordance wilth inlemationally approved Enfeprise
Risk Managerment Mode methodology, which has been developed by the Commities of Spansoring Organizations of
ihe Treadway Commission (COS0). The Company's risks are assessed in lour catogonies: siralegic, operational,
firancial and external risks. Financial risk comprises market risk [including curmency risk, intierest rate risk), crodit risk
and Bguidity rigc. The primary objectives of the linancial sk marsgemant hunction ar 1o eatablish dak Emits, and
MHMMMHHMMMMMMMM“Wm
ansure propar lunclicning of intemal pelicias and procedures 1o minimise those raks. Risk managemant s monsoeed
at the Managernent Board leval and the results are repored 1o the Superviscry Board. The Company's Baquidty,
inlénest rabs and cumsncy risks are managed at ihe Company's Finance Deparimant.

Thae following table provides reconclintion of classes of linancial sssats and Rnancial abiites ol the Coempany in
accordance vwith the measuremant cabegories of 1AS 36

Loans and recelivables

i Bcumands of Exfonian kmons M.a22010 1.12.2000 01.01 2000
Cash and cash equivaients (Nole 8] 626,800 o o
Trade and other recetvablas (Nofe Nate 7) 337,234 189,133 184,424
- Trisde rocabablis 336,840 180,115 184,377
- Citsar recehvablas P85 18 a7
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 864,100 189,133 184,424
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Financhal liablifies at amortised cost

i Paoussancly of Efonusa kroons 3.12.2010 31122008 01012008
Trade and ofher payables (Nole 12) B58.43) 257,266 180,558
Borrowings (Note 11) 2,505,403 2,535 838 2432707
TOTAL FINHAMCIAL UABILITIES 3463923 3193204 2613273
Crodit risk

The Campary takes on exposune bo credit rigk, which is the risk that one party io a financial instrumant will cause a
Tinanciad loas loe the other party by laling to discharge an cbligation. Exposure to credit risk arises as a result of the
Company's sales on credit terms and ofher iransactions with counforparies gving riss fo Bnancial assets, In
accondance with the Company's risk managamant principles, the Company's shori-lsrm available cash rescunces
can be depasited in the foliowing domestic financial instruments: ovomight deposits B credi! insSiutions, lem
depcaits af credd insttutions. The following principles ane followed when depositing shor-iem available cash
reduftes: ensuring of liquidity, capital preservalion, revenye gensmation,

The Compary’s maximusn axposuns 1 credi fisk by class of assets is &3 follows:

¥ iccands of Exfomian krooms I 122000 3. 122008 0072008
Cash and cash squivalents (Mol &) 08 5EE i [+
Trade and other recelvables (Note Note 7) 337,234 189,133 184,424
- Trade recesvables 338,940 188,115 184,377
« Other ecetsablos 5 18 47
'Fﬁm-:"l of assefs to credif risk in the 964,100 189,133 184,424

The Company structures he levels of credif risk il underlakes by placing limits on the amount of rsk sccepted in

refation to counferparties or groups of counlerparties. Limits on the lovel of crecs risk are approved regulary by
managermant. Such riska are monitored on an angoing basis and they are subject to B biannual review.

The Company's Accounting Departmant reviews ageing analysis of outstnnding irade recahvables and lollows up on
past dus balances sach wesk. The resulls am maporied o the CFO of the Company. The Company has ideniilied
cifcumstances under which the collecion of debl is passed over 1o a collection agency. Managament therelor
considers i appropriale o provide againg and ofher infermaton about credit risk as disciossd in Mot 7.

Crealit risk conceniration. The Company i exposed lo concentrations of credif risk. Management monilors and
discloses concantrations of crodd risk by reports, which lis exposunes fo counberparty with apgregated balsnces in
excess of 5% of the Company's squity. Al 31.12.2010, the Company had 1 counterparty (disiibulion network
opéralor) (31122000 and 1.1.2008 1 counierparty) with an aggrogated receivabiss balance of EEK 247,340
thousand (31.12.2008 EEK 142,722 thousand: 1.1.200%: EEK 127.808 thousand) or 73% of 1he gross amount of
frade and oiher recebmbles (31.12. 2008 75%; 1.1.2008: 65%),

Initsialisearitud ainull identifitscorimiscks
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Mlarkal risk

The Company i exposed lo market sk Marks? risk arises from open posilions in {a} foreign curmncies, and (b)
intarest bearing assets and liabilities. Management sots lims on the valus of risk thal may be accepted, which is
manitated on a dady bass. Howsvar, the use of this approach does nof pravent losses outside of these mits in the
avarnt ol mare significant marke! movesnants,

Sensitvities 10 market risks shown baiow are basad on a change in one factor while holding all other faciors conatant.
In practice, this s uniikely 1o cocur and changes in some of M laciors may be correlated - for eampla, changes in
intareat rale and changes in fonsign curmancy miss.

Currency risk

Currency risk doos nol anise from iransaclions and balances denominated in euros, as the Exionian kroon is pegged
1o surg af the fimed exchangs mis. As most of the Company's Irarssctions and balances are dencminaisd sEher in
Estonian kroons or surca, the Compary i not exposed o signilicant cusrency risk.

Transacions i ofwr curencies & insignificant; ihere were no financial irsiruments denominaled In othar
cumencies as at 31,12.2010, 31, 123000 and 01,01, 2008,

Infarsst rade fisk

The Camparry is not exposed o fair value ek as it has nd interest bearing financlal instruments carried al fair value
#nd 3 financial instruments with fised rate. Cash Now interest rabe risk arises from borrawings wilth a foating interest
rabe. Lntil 80792010 the Company had & loan and cverdrall agreement wilh s parent company. The inberest rale lor
MdM_ﬂﬂmlﬂ.HMHMhmmme;m
Troem & bank syndicale. The imeread rabe cn tha rew loan ia Euribor + 300 basis points. Pursuant 1o ihs loan condract,
ihe Company has the right 1o choose between 3-month and B-month Euribor for each following intoresd period.
Euribor is fixed ane day prior to the baginning of tha new intares! period: fhe Compamy's management decides
whether o fix the irterest rale for threa or aix monthe, depending on which option B mare invourable. The table
balow summarises the Company's exposure 1o intarest rale risks. The tables presents the aggregated amounis of tha
Compary’s lnancial assels and lablies af carrying amounts, calegonsed by the eardior of confractual inteest
repricing and matuarity dates.

hmmmmmmmum
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T —— Ondemandand  From 3 to 12 montha Total
3.92.2000

Cash and cash aquivalents (Nobe &) 624, BEs ] 628,588
Long-tarm borrowings (Mote Note 11) 2,805 493 a 2,505,483
Het interest sensitivity gap at 31.12.30M0 -2 278,827 a 2,878,637
31923008

Shari-term bofrowings (Mote Note 11) 2

Owondraft [Mote MNats 11) BAO.250 o 889,252
Mat interesi sensitivity gap st 31.12.3008 2,535,838 o «2.935,838
01.01.2009

Long-larm borrowinga (Nl Nobs 11) o 2,048,588 2,044 588
Creriralt {Mote Node 11) 386,121 1] 388,121
Mel Inlores] sensitivity gap al 01,01.2009 388,121 =2,008 508 2,433 707

In the long run, the Company's infarest re fsk is imiled because the imeres! rals feke of income and sxpenses
groatly offsel sach oihar. In sccordance vish the legalator's methodology in respect of delarmination of the tarifs, the
st infevest rabe s Csed jor datarmining the waighied average cost of capital (WACC) of regulaied asasis which i
used for calculating regutaled income. When market interest rates increasae, the natwork tanfs incroese as well

i at 31122070, iniaresi rates had been 10 basis points lower (31.12.2008: 10 basss pointa) o 100 basis point highes
(31022000 100 basis points) with all ofher variables held constant, profit for the year woukl have been EEX 2,005

thousand (2008: EEX 2,836 ihousand) higher o EEK 29,055 thousand (200%: EEK 29,350 thousand) lowss, mainly
&8 & result of & lowertaghss inlenes] opense on variable interest lablibes.

The Camparny moniars interest rabes of its Sinancial instruments. The tabis below summarkses effestive intarest rabes
during iha respacineg linancial years on ihe basis ol repors reviewed by key manapement persannal:

In % pua. Fg [ 2008
Liabilities

Long-tarm bomowings (Mole MNate 11) 4.28
Crvmeciralt {Mote Noba 11) a3 4.8

Other price risk. The Company has no exposue Io equily pros risk as i does not hold financial instrumants open to
prica risik.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that an antity will encounber difficulty in meating obligations associated with linancial iabiities.
The Company i exposed io daily calls on is available cash resources. Liquidty rsk is managed by the Finance
Daparimant of the Company. The Campany's objective ks io cbiain & siabls funding base primarly conambing of
MﬂhHﬁﬂﬂmmmmhMHMWMﬂum
-mﬁmmmwwmmmmimm-dwmﬁm
Department.

Tha tnble below shows liabiibes at 31.12.2010, 31.12.2008 and 01.01.2009 by thaltir Fsmaliining coniractual masurify.
Thee amounds disclosed in the maturity tabls ane contractual undiscounted cash Raves.

When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disciosed is detarmined by referonce 1o the condilions existing al
tha reparting date. Foresgn cumency paymaents are iramisted using the $pol exchange rale af the balance sheat dato.

Tha meaturity anatysis of financal kabiliies at 31,72.2010 is s jollowe:

On demand and From 1 to
lessthan 12 monihs 12 months 1o 5

]
i

hm;ﬂ‘hﬂr.ill_'ll _ 1.,& years
“Trads avd s payaes (1o 17, 0 531257 2 o 531,287
Bormowings (Mode 11), incl. sccrued inarest. 27473 118,543 2,000 044 3,188,859
Tatal future payments 558430 118542 3022044 3,850,918
The maturity analysis of financial labities at 31.12.2008 i as fllovw:

Ondemandand  From 110 Fram Total
E lotatan 12 months 1:m-j::
“Trade and olher payaties (Nole 12) T 267,26 0 0 257,368
Bank and parmnt company overdralts {Note 11) 889,252 0 0 589,252
Bormowings (Note 11) 2,055,220 [ o 2,055,220
Total future payments 3,201,538 0 0 320188
Tha maturity analyas of financial Eshiles at 01.01.2009 is as follows:

Ondemandand  From 110 From Total
I thowssands of Estoman kioons T N
Trade and other paynbies (Hote 12) 180,568 0 ) 180,568
Bank and parent company cverdafts (Note 1) 395,905 o o 395,905
Bormowings (Note 11) 0 123,480 2,066,874 2,180,334
Total tuture payments BTBAT 123,480 2086874 2,758,808

Far snsuring liquidity and betier management ol cash flows, the Company has concluded cverdrall coniracis wilh the
banks in the amount of EEK 312 532 thousand as  31.12.2010, In addition to overdraft, tha Company has undrawn
inan taciliies in Be amount of EEK 1,564,660 thousand as at 31,12.2010. As af 1.1.2009 and 31.12.2000 the
Company had oveedrall and loan agresmants with its then panent entity. See further information in Mabs 11,
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Capital Managamant

The Campany's main goal in capital risk management is o ensuhs the Compary's sustanabilly of oparations in arder
Yo genarale retum for s shareholders and provide & sense of securily 1o creditors and thersby, preserve an optimal
capital structure and lower the cost of capital. in order 1 preserve or imprave the capital structure, the Company can
reguiats ihe dividonds payabis to the shaneholden, buy back shares from sharehaldens, issue now shams or bonds,
take noew loans, sell assats 1o reducs liabilities.

According 1o the widespread indusiry practice, the Company uses the equity 1o assel ralio lor monilceing the
Company's capital, arved a2 by dividing lotal equity by total assets &s &t the balance shoet date. In 2010, similarly
1o 20089 and 2008, the Company's goal was 10 proaene i raa of squity 1o assels at 35 - 55%.

According o the terms set forth in the loan contract, the Company also uses the equity ratio fo monftor the
Company's capial The equity to assel mbo wes 38% as ai 31.12.2010, 38% a5 af 31,12.2008, and 47 =a &t
01,01 2008,

In fhousands of Exlonian kroons a1 122000 . 122009 01072008
inisresi-bearing abiiiss [Mods I11) 2905, 423 2,935 838 242707
Cash and cash aquivalants [Node & 626, 568 o 0
Med dabt 2278527 2,505 838 LAx 07
Enquity 2,501 551 2,198,508 2,507 621
Total capital 4,780,178 5,135,348 5,030,328
Total assats 6,562,070 5755728 5,857,011
EqQuiTy o assel ratio % s i
Fair Value of Financial insirumeonis

Fair value ks the amount al which i Enancisl instrament could be exchanged in & curmant transacticn betwesn willng
parties, other Bhan in & forcad sale or Iquidation, &nd & besd axpressed by an active quoled marks! prics.

Estimated fair values of financial insbruments have besn determined by the Company using svalabls mase)
informabion, whare £ eaists, and approprists valuation methodologies, However, judgement i also reguined 1o
indarprod rrarkat date o determine ihe esSmated lair value.

Financial assots carried al amortised cosl. Carrying amounts of irsde and othor firancial receivables approsmals
thir fair valuss.

Liabifies carried of amorfised cost Carying amounis of trade and olher payables as well as overdmft
appeoximate thair lair values.

The estimaled tair valus of non-cument borowings with & lived inferest rse or Ted risk margin is delermenad uaing
valpation techriques, based on expecied cash fows discourted af curant imlorest rates for new instrumants. with
smilar credit riak and remaining maturiby.
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Management estimates thal the fair value of joans as &t 31.12.20M0, 022000 and 01.01.2000 doss nat
mmmwmmmummmmm

Nodw 6. Cash and cash eguivalonts

10 thousands of Eslorian koons A0 M.I22000  01.01.2000
Bark accourts 276866 0 o
Snhort-temn depasits 350,000 ] 0
Total cash and cash equivalents 526,808 0 3
Bank sccounts and deposits:

iy Mouands of Estonan kraons 322010 31122008  01.01.2009
with Moody's. credil rasing of Aa3 350,139 0 [}
with Moody's credil rating of AaZ 110.506 o o
Without gonerally accented credit rabng” 185,791 0 [
Total Becounts and deposits at banks 526,866 0 0

*SEB Pank AS and Swedbank AS no longer have & separate Moody's crodil rafing. The parent of Swedbank AS,
Swedbank AB has Moody's credit rafing of AZ. the parent of SEB Pank AS, Skandinaviska Enskilda Barken AB has
Moodhy's credi rating of A1,
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Note 7. Trade and Other Receivables

in thousands of Esfanian kroons MAZ0I0 3122008 0107 2000
Trade recehvables

Accounts receivable 338,840 182115 184,377

inct rade recahables from related pariies (Nale 22 273,280 162,523 145,005

Allrwance fof impained recehabies <378 -358 @

Deher receivabies 285 18 47
incl: infarasl recahabis 274 o a

Total financial asssts within trade snd olher recelvabiles Jara4 188,133 184,424
Tax recevables 3,858 15,311 G402

inel VAT recowersbis 3,883 12243 Bae
Prapaymards oET 4 084 1.420
Total trade and other recelvables 342,158 208,568 182248
Analysis by cred® quably of trade receivables is as loliows:
In ihousands of Esfonian kroons HMa2a0m0 HA22000 01.01.2009
Accounts recenvible nof yef due
- Agladed pariies excluding disiribuBion networis 22,044 189,801 21,287
- Dimtribsution rstworks 257,818 154,008 135,670
- Dther clionts 45,710 14,755 22,847
Total sceounts recehvable not yet dus 13472 188,584 180,644
Accounts recaivaiie pasl dus hut nol classifed as impained
- 1 10 30 days averdue 388 30 3,720
- 31 1o 60 days overdus 80 178 ]
- 61 10 90 days overdus 12 142 5
Tolal sccounts receivable past due but not classified e impained 417 8= ara
Accourts recevsahie classiied as impaired
= 80 ko 180 days overdus a2z 5 L]
= 180 1o 360 days cvardus a25 43 1]
- aver 350 days overdus 19 1] 0
Total accounts recelvabla clasalfied as impakned ara . L]
Total accounts recelvable past dus 851 839 4733
Tatal trade recelvables 336,348 189,115 184,377
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Hote 8. Proparty, Plant and Equipmant

Maovernents in the camying amount of property, plant and squipment were as folows:

Machinery

it Mg of Extonian kmong o — and Capatrustion
Proparty, plant and squipment at 01.01.2008
Cot it 01.01.2008 45500 1BZA40 1SS3M0E 247251 0 M 0 6.258.588
Accumilated depreciation 0 SITAM .TROGTS S4B 18 0 1361573
Carrying amaunt 01013009 49800 745504 279A5I  187H08 i 0 4BET013
Construction in prosgress a [} 0 1] o ATRES  4TRENS
Wil B W SqMRReR ¥ o T sreasss LN M aan Raeus
bovmmants 1,1 2008-31.12.3005:
Acatons BS54 ] o 1.875 485 453312 484,008
Plectssfied rom constructon in prograsd 0 TG 2T 4SSDM2 0 EEAM 0
Capitaised borrowing cost [Mota 21) o o L] o Q -] T.888
x P ] 0 [ 110 o 0 30
Depreciation charge 0 FaW A8 4730 0 303538
imparmen chamgs [ [ 12 801 o 0 33
Teotal movemnants 1.1.2009-31.12. 2008 oS BTTe <S6.5T9 30D 4T nr B2 304 18T
Preperty. plant snd equipment af 71.12.2008
Cost af 31,12.2000 BATAE  BSOE0T  DBAS0M ZEMIN 0 a2 LT
Asrmiated dereciaton 0 408 SONSSS SEITSR o144 8 1,840
Carrying amownt at 31.12.2008 i eI LTS LiesE &0 @ 519650
Cerminachon in progress [ [ [ a ;AN JTEN
Frecayments 1575 o [ [ o 1075
Twm‘ BOIH  FMI83  27IEG4d 2186581 618 NTHT  BEIE166
Mevernenis 1,01 2010-31. 122010
Additions ang Q Q BBS o ITTOS1 3SBISS
Fiacirisd e frerm eonptruction in orogress 0 18 U720 0T o 236,714 @
Capaskad bofrewng costs {Nale 21] a a 8 a o 15,361 15,31
Drepereain 8 a o o [0 o @ o4 058
Deprooation changs 0 ST5ED  -14ET7SE  1SLOS5 -1B8 0 -3OTATZ
I el charga o 0 S0 -] 0 AT 51884
Toksl movements 1.07.3018-31.12.3000 B30 4501 -BS531 1BO7TRO 188 4803 pam
Propesty, plent snd squipmnent at 11.12.2010
Cest i 31122000 BEA4E 263417 AB84T4 3153076 2 e 0 768444
AL L el 0 45033 03331 8BTS 30 0 <1,804000
Carrying amount 31122040 BE A4S 1AM 268138 237381 432 0 SITIETS
Constndion in proges a | a L] a5 NS
Fiiaymey 1975 0 a B 0 8 1978
o oo P md eaPen B g s W18 207 4% mame Suase
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Construction in progress mainly consists of construction of subststions and electricily transmission nes. Uipon
compledion, assets are traraderrad fo Suldings and faclities.

In the financial year anded 31.12 2010, additions 1o construction in progress include capialised borowing costs of
EEK 15,387 thousand (2009: EEK 7,E98 thousand). The capialsation rate wis 4.4%.

In 2010, the Company launched preparations for the construction of the second connection batween Estonia and
Finland (Eatirk 2), inchuding thorougn nenavaton of he current ines for the purpose of increasing their throughgut
capacily. As & resull of the activities mantioned sbove, 5ome of the cbsolete assets related 10 the lines wers written
down (2010; EEX 42,830 thousand, 2008: EEK 0) and the lines wers ranovaled.,

Haots 9. Operating Leass

Company as a lessor

Operafing mass ravenus:

i Mousands of Estonian hroons 2018 008
Buidings 6,434 1,525
Transmission eguipman 12,823 @618
Total operating lease revenua (Nate 15) 19,257 11,143

Iminsmission squipmani. Tha Company haa an operating lease confract under which the free fibres af ihe Fibre-cplic
eabls fxad o the ins masts are loased oul This cable alsy act &8 & Eghining protection cord for tha linss and the
finres are used by the Company for its Wechnical communication. The trea fibres have been loased out o TelevBrgu
AS, The lease contract contains a restriction under which the Comparry cannol give iis ransmission equipment out
lor usa by oifer companies operiing in the lscommunications feld. The contract is effective until 31.00.2095,
Anruind lsass payment vares depanding on the langth of libees leased oul during S yoar.

Information about ssots (tacilities) leassd oul under operating leases:

i Fouaand of Eafovss kroons: II-.'IL.HI‘IE 31122008 'I.!.'Iﬂl
Cost P0.675 a8 o2
Accurmulated depreciation at tha end of paviod 3975 28,097 22,480
Carrying amount 56,700 a5, 48538
Indtstalisceritud alnult identifisesrimiseks
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Dapreciation chargs

i Hhousancy of Exfonun ki oo 2009
Dapreciation chargs 5,708 5,621

Estimatad fulure leass payments undar oporating loases:

dn thowsandy of Eplosian kraons 3122010 N.12.2000
Miod laber than 1 year 12,824 12,823
Later than 1 year and not laier than 5 years 51,208 51,292
Luier than 5 years 118622 131,438
Total future minkmism lsass payments 182,742 185,551

Company as a lessoe

Operating lease anpenses:
I Mousanags of Exianian koons 10 2009
Buildings 564 68,537
Transpon aquipmernt LFr ] 1,368
Ot machinary ard squipmant 1470 28
Total oparating loase expenses 2907 781
Al lease coniracis are canceinble &1 shor notice.

Initsia
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Hote 10. Intangible Assets

i Bhewrian of Fatoran kroons Acquired software  Right of use of land Total
Intangible essats at 1.1.2008

Cost ab 1.1.2009 262 & 141 12,403
Accumulsied smorssiion 110 =30 470
Carrying amount at 1.1.2008 152 .78 11,833
intangible assets not yet available for use 5,904 0 5,904
Total Intangible sssets &t 1.1.2008 8,088 178 17,837
Movements 1.1.2008-31,12.2008;

Additions 2,181 3,835 13,118
Capitalised borrowing costs (Note Node 21) 344 0 344
Amaortisation charge -148 150 208
Toitsl movernants 1.1.2000-31. 12.2000 B3TR 3,785 13,164
Intangibile assets at 31.12.2000

Cost &l 31.12.2009 B30 16,076 18,708
Accurnulaied amortisation 257 509 Ty
Carrying amouni at 31.12.2000 m 15 568 15,530
intangitla stsats nol yol avallabie for usa 15,06 o 18,082
Total Intangible assets al 31122008 18,438 15,568 11,001
Movemants 1.01.2010-31.12.2010

Additions 14,760 2821 1740
Capfinlised bomrowing costs (Mot Mabe 21) Bt o B4
Amncrtisation chams -558 <180 748
Total movements 1.01.2010-31.12.2010 15,088 243 17,406
Intangible assets at 31122010

Cosi at 31122010 3384 18,694 22,080
Accurmuiaind amorEsation #13 -G89 1,812
Carrying amouni at 31.12.2010 2551 17,807 20,548
Intangile assets not yot avaiable ov use 27,949 0 27,849
Total intangible assets at 31.12.2010 30,500 17,907 48457
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Nate 11, Borrawinga
In housands of Eglonlin kroons 31.12.2010 122000 01.01.2009
Orverdraft (Mote Mot 22) 0 BER.252 84,121

inct: bark overdrafl o 242 0
Currand porfion of long-tarm laans from parent compary 1] 2,048,508 i}
Total surrent borrowings <] 2,838 538 388,111
Leng-tarm bank ican 2,905,400 o o
Long-serm ican from panant comparny (Mole Nole 22) o] o 2,006,588
Tetal non-current borrowings 2905483 o 2,046,588
Total barrowings 2,805,483 2,535,838 2432707

Tha Compary's besmowings e denceninatbed in currencies s lollows:

19 udnas o Cxdorean knons NI22010 31122000 01.01.2000
Borrowings denominatnd in EEK ] 2,935,585 2,432,707
Borowings danominated m ELIR 2.005.403 243 0
Total barmawings 2,905,493 2,035,838 2432707

The Company has used two typas of credl for Enancing purpases:

Loan. Al 28.12 2006, tha Company enianed irio & syndicated loan contract in e amount of EUR 167 milion [EEX
2,925,014 thousand) with ths due dabe of 28.12.2012. The total loan amount was taken out at B.01.2010. Tha infares!
s i Euribor + 3.00%.

in 2009, ihe Company had a lcan agresmant with Eesti Energla AS. According io the agresmani, Essti Energia AS
leni tha Company EEK 2 048 560 thousand for an unspecifiad ismn, with tha right of recall with advance notice of 13
mantfs, inberest rales ware established by Eesti Enangia AS lor a period ol ane year in accordance with the average
actual interest sopoenses charged on the borrowings of Eessi Energia AS, and the Company's risk mangin. The
effeciive intsrest rale of the loan was 4,68% in 2000, The syndicated loan agreement obliged the Company 1o meturm
the loan o the pareat compary in full. O B.1.20010 tha Company repaid the ioan b5 the Parent company,

Az gl 31.12.2010, tha Company had undraen loan facilities in the ameurd of EEK 1,564,660 thoussnd, The right o
take oul & portion of the loan granted by the European Imvestmaent Blark (EEK 1,173,405 thousand) of the full smount
of it is effective duning 38 months from the signing of the contract at 18.11.2010. In accordance with the contract
antsned o with Mardic investmand Bank al 20.10.2010, aithar & portion o the full smeunt of the loan (EEX 351, 165
ihousand) can be taken during the perod of B.072011-20.12.2004, For both conbracts, (he inferest rate will ba
aghaed prior 1o kking ot sach porticn,

Owvardrafl. During the pariod of 1.01.2010-8.01.3010 and in 2000, the Compary ussd the overdrms oblained lrom Bs
ihen parert Essti Enargin AS. Tha inlevest mile was 4.B8% (2005: 4 81%). Af the date of faking oul the syndicated
loan referred o in Bhe previous sacson, the iotal amount of the overdraft was pald back ko Eeadl Energia AS and tha
respaciive overdrafl contract was lerminaled. Simulianeously with the conclusion of the syndicated loan coniract, lour
overdralt contracts were concluded wilh 1he banks which parficipate in the syndicale with The fotal Brmit amount of
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EUR mmmalmmmmmuumn“mhmmmn
same 83 ose of the syndicated lcan. As of the balance sheet dale, the Compary had not used the cvardmit

(31.12.2008: EEK 889,252 thousand, 01.01.2006: EEK 388,121 thousand),

Note 12. Trade and Other Payablos

it Fiwsianch of Estorian kraony 322010 NA22000 01012009
Trade payables aBE207 124,847 71,195

incl: trade payables fo related parties Ncls Nois 22 128013 50,4580 32,040
“‘*‘“"‘m“w.w DAY, Dikand-Squpect wd 38,824 27,303 30428

Inci: payabies fo related paries (NoleMiole 22| 5 35 Fi]
Subsidies dus fo eleciricity producers (Mobe MNate 2) 236,021 104,128 77,803
Agonied inlerest 27173 a ]
Other payables 1,208 1,000 1,140

dncl payahles io redaled parties (MoteNole 22) 500 500 500
Total financial labillties within irace and other payables 558,430 257,388 180,586
Tazes payable: BA22 soT 4,850
Social security tax 2.0 2241 2215
Pemansl incoma lax 1,862 1,302 1,238
Unemploymand insuranca iax 06 2 50
Canfributions to mandalory fundad pansion Fi b g2
Corpomie incoma tax and income 1ax an Iringe benedits 49 o a7
Excise tay 1,480 1.2¢ 1.330
Actrusd cxpenses - employes benafits: a4 5,245 6,950
Wages and salanes o 23 220
Borumes a2 L 1,474
Holiday pay 1,816 2,188 2117
Social sacurty and unemploymani insurancs fax B3 L1 1,196
Withheld amounis 0 F i 10
Other payables 186 8210 14,207
Total treds and other payables 546,608 73,838 206,722

Initsisliseeritud alnult Idamtifitscarimisoks
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Hote 13. Income from Connection and Other Service Foes

i Mousands of Eatanien kroons .
Deferred Income from connection and other servico feas at 1.1,.2000 319,961
Movements 1.1.2000-31,12.2000:

Connaclicn and other service foes roceved 42,063
Connection and other service lees recognised as rovenye e
Dederred income from connection and cther senvics loss at 31.12.2000 348,541
Movemants 1.01.2010-21. 12.2010;

Caonnection and other sorvice legs recelved 20.786
Connection and other service fess recogeiised a3 revenuo i
Deferred income from connection and other servics fees at 31,12 2010 349,385

Prepayments related to government grants af 01.01.2000 0
Propayments relsied to government grants al 31.12.2000 1]

Subsidies recetved lrom Eunopean Uinion® 237 a3
Prepayments relsted lo government grants sl 31.12.2010 22703
Incl, Non-curment prepaymants
3rEa
* Soo addiional inlermation in Nole 23
Note 14, Equity

Tha Company’ share capital conaists of one shass with e rominal value of EEX 2,100,524 thousand (31,12.2008
EEK 2,100,000 thousand, 21.01.2000 EEK 2,100,000 thousand] . The shana has been paid for in full.

In 2010, with tha rescluion af the scls shansholdar, the shame capial was increased by EEK 00,524 thousand. Tha
paymant for Bha increass in the nominal value of the share was made in Decembar 2010,

Ins tha financial year 1.1.2010- 31.12.2010. no dhadends veens pakd (in 2009 dividends ware declared and paid in the
amount of EEK 480,002 thousand and the masulting income bax amounted io EEK 127,619 thousand),

As al 3.12.2010, the Compars stalulory mssnme capial totalled EEK 44,039 thousand (31.12.2009: EEK 44,050
theusand, 01012008 EEK 30261 thousand). As at 31.12.2010, the Company has the obligation o additionally
tranaher EEX 10,578 thousand (31.12.2008 EEX 0, 01.01.200% EEK 13,778 thousand) 1o reserve capital,

The retsined samings of the Company as 8l 31 Decembar 2010 amounted o EEK 266 988 thousand (31,12 2008
EEK 55489 thousand, 01.01.2000c EEK 467 380 (housand) The ncome tax rate applicabls i the nat profi
distributable as dividends s 21/70 from 1 January 2008, As a1 31.12.2010, & would be possible io distribule EEX
202585 thousand as nat dividends (31.12.2000: EEX, 43,821 thousard, 01.01.2009: EEK 358,330 ihousand) and e
cofraaponding income fax would amount ta EEK 53,847 thousand (31.12.2000: EEK 11,848 thousand, 01,01.2000;
EEK 85,252 thousand).
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Note 15, Revonue

Analysis of revenue by aciity:

i Esociands of Esfonsan kroong 2010 2008
Sales of balancing and control slectricity T 102,385
Sales of notwork services

Transmission loes 1,052,067 1,010,800
PRevanue from conmaction lees (Mabe Nobe 13) 17.942 15.4E3
Oihar network services® 36,508 25,460
Total sales of network services 1,106 807 1,081,773
Sales of other goods and services

Laase of ransmission equipmeant (MNole 9§ 12,623 12,5248
Mﬂmm 11,048 B34
Lease of buildings (Mote 8 G454 1,526
Sales ol cther sarvces” 5,730 2300
Cither goods 42 a1
Total sales of other goods and services 36,088 17,155
Total revenus 1280429 1,181,313

* In the finandsl statemants of 2008, the dispaicher and ragulation sarvices ware classilied within netwark sanvicas.
in Ehess hinancial stalements (hese sanvices are includod wishin olher services and the axpenass in the compartve
paricd in B amount of EEK 2,080 thousand hava boen reclassiied sccordingly,

I 2010 and 2008, revenus from one cusicmer of the Company indhidually excesdsd 10% of ihe Company's
revenues, Revenuo from thal cusiomes (Distribution Nedwork of Esicnlan Energy) amounied o EEK 872,511

thousand in 2010 (EEK 852, 756 thousand in 2000).

Analysis of rmanus by geographical location of customers:

i thousancis of E-stonan kroans 2010 2000
Estonia 1,350 088 108,117
Latia 19,511 35976
. 5,945 35927
Lithuania 3,724 283
Finland o o
Fobsl revence 1,300,429 1,181,313
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Hote 16.0ther Incoma

i1 Shousands of Exoran ksons 2010 2008
Finess, panalties and compansations received 208 o
Proft on disposal af proparty, plant and equipment 961 .
Nat gain fram exchange rafe changes o a7
Othar i 2
Total other income 1348 283
Note 17, Goods, Raw Materials and Services

e ougand of Fafoman kroons 2010 20n0e
Eleeiricity purchased to provide the balancing service

Purchase of balancing ekeciricity 145,132 A
Puschase of powss rguiation service =t ke
Total electricity purchased to provide the balancing service il e
Sysism sarvices axpenses

Purchased alectricity reserves BT 248 £4,003
_Reaciive energy 2528 2391
Total system services expenses s i
Eloctricity o companaats for network losses

_Eleczricity from non-renewabie sources a7 174,170
Total [ tor notwork losses mar 174,170
Malntenance and repair works

On taciliSes and equipment related o cone activiies BB, 75 86,276
On production buldings and siies 11414 i
Disassoambly works and wasis processing 2,008 2503
_Oher axpensss ool b
T and works B4,804 78,845
Other axpenses

Operalrve swtcning and dspasching management oxpanses 8024 8054
_Othar sxpenses L] DAThY
Total other expenses 18,624 33,800
Tolsl goods, rew materials and sendces B30, 753 452,200
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HNads 18, Odher Operating Expenses

in Psanaly of Esloniin knoons 2010 2009
Trarspostation and tocls T 1598
Security, insurance and occupational satety 4323 2335
Ofico aspenses BA5E B22g
Ressanch and consulting 6,168 5,781
Telecommunicalion 14,065 14,024
Infarmation techrolagy 8,752 6,484
Traning and cihar aparating axpenses 7045 8,439
Total other operating expenses 46,045 47,888
Note 19. Staft Costs

i Shousanets of Extorian Kroont 2010 2009
Basx salanes, additional remuneration, bonuses, vacation pay 42,807 30,811
Other benafits 296 28
Termination banafits 187 1,247
Dther remuneration i i
_Total remuneration 1o smployses i ax048
Social security tax 14, 688 LAk
Unemployment insurance tax i oo
Todal stall coste . 58,521 58,574
mﬁuwunmﬂhm

Salanes, aoditional remuneraton bonuses, VACANaN pay 3,140 2,838
Fringe benalits mn i
Tarmination pangtts o M0
Bocial B 1,181 1,005
i “:nuﬂ-dmm 4,589 414

The averagps manthly pay was EEK 268,301 (2005 EEK 26,1881

Tormination banefits

Tha mambers of the Management Board necefve compensation for prematurs iarmination of their employment

conimcls, such compensalion smounts up i3 the three monkhs' salary.
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Hote 20. Other Expanses

W Faands of Esforan ko

Nom-business relabed expanses
Fines, penalies and companaations paid
Mot lcss from exchangs rate changes

Incoma (ax from sxpenses nol related o business
Orhar

Total cther expanses

Nota 21, Finance incoms and Costs

£12 2. - 5|2

3.8 .0 8|8

Finance income
Indgrest incoma

Foreign exchangs gains

Total finance income

Finance cosls
Indanast axpenses
Foreign eachange ksses
Total finance costs

L capitalised firance costs (Nodes 8, 10)

o —

117,958

117,978

Total finance cosls recognised |n the statemants of
comprehensive

114,774

~108,736

Datailed information aboiud the bormowings s disciased in Mote 11.

Note 2. Balances and Transactions with Relaled Parties

Parties are ganerally considared 1o be related il the parties are under common cantral or If ane party has the abiity 1o
MﬂhmmnﬂHWWMWﬁtwﬂdmhwmmMMﬂ
oporabional decisions, In conaidaning aach possible related party relationakip, stisnbion is dinscled o fa substancs ol

fha relaticnahip, ot mansly the legal lom,

in prepanng the Company's financial stalenents. the lollowing paries have been considerod as rdaled partes:
{1} Republic of Extonia and the entifes under s control or significant influsnce;

{ii) Management and suporvisary boards;

(i} closa relafives of ihe persons described sbave and the entites under their conbrol o signilicant infusnce;
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(iv) until 27.01,.2010 parent company and olher antities in the corsolidation group of the parent company (L8 lelow

subsichares)

Tha cutstanding balances with related partics were as Tollows:

i Momdinds of Esfonian iroons . 122010 3.12.2000 0.0 2008
Trade recolvables (Note 7)
Paranl compary 1] 4,033 118
Fallow subsiciares 0 144, 400 135,650
Comparses cortralied or signiicansy nfluvenced by the Siate 273,389 14,087 13218
Total trade recaivables (Note 12) 273,389 162,523 148,038
incl from nofwork oparaicrs 250,445 144, 500 128,928
Trade payables snd other ilabilities
Parent eampany ] 17.530 13208
Fliow subsidiarion 0 42300 1838
Comparsss conirolled or signilicantly influanced Ery the Siate 127,466 167 7
Total trade payables and othar liabilities 127488 B0,.038 32848
Overdraft (Mols 11)
Parmni company o 889,005 288,121
Current borrowings (Nobe 11)
Parent compamy L] 2,048,558 1]
Hon-currant bormowings (Nole 11)
Parent compary o 1] 2,048,508
Incoms and axpense Boms with related parties were as loligws:
i thousands of Exforsan kool Related party 2010 2008
Revenus from sale of goods and services  Parent company” T.B530 30,473
Falicw subgidiaries® 131,29 71580
m!“"““! H!I"m 1090187 5,990
Total revenue from sale of goods and services 1,220,265 08,052
Purchass of goods and services Pairsnd company™ 5427 57048
Fallow subsidianas” 29,550 212am
Gntl:lﬁll::nlunrwr 214,891 2970
Total purchase of goods and services " 249,888 273,580
- e o o
Paroni compary™ 2,783 117,950
inltsinllseeritud ainull identifimesrimiseks
Initialied for the purpose of identification only 35
Inits:aahidiinitials . f
w“m _;l, I:.lf.l.l;}l.l.

PricewalarouseL copaes, Talinn
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2009 and 2070 Annual Report
I Mousands of Exfanien koo PRelated party 200 2000
Inel. Capitaksed borrowing coats (MNole 21) -301 8243
Expendiiures on non-current assets Parent company® i 85,247
Faliow subsidiarias* 2,108 18,438
Mwmww o2 3,805
Total expenditures on Rof-clerrent Easets 345 85,488

"the Company was pari of Esali Enemgila Group undl 27.01.2010. The aales io related parties in 2010 alsa includs the
bransactions with thi snibies of Ees Energin Group concluded in Januany 2010,

“the Company separated from Eesti Energia Group: it purchased a commarcial building at Kadaka lee 42 and the
axdjoining land for the lotal amount of EEX 64 million.

Transactions with companies, in which ihe members of the Suporvisory and Management Boards as well as
their closs relatives have significant influsnce

in Mousands of Exionian kroons 2010 2009

Sales of sarvices B
Purchases of services &1

Koy management parsonnel compeansalions. e disclosed in Note 19,

= W

Hote 2. Contingencies and Commitments

Netwovk development obligations Under the Electricity Marked Act, the network opersics must develop the natwork
within i3 S07vice area in & way thal ensures the continued provislon af nebwork sendces in accordancs with he al
TpuingETHniS.

Capital expenditure commilmants A1 31.12 2010, the Company has conbractusl capitsl sxpandifung commitmants
in respect of proparty, plant and equipment tofalling EEK 3,618,406 thousand (31.12.2008: EEK 283 748 thousand,
01.00.2009: EEX 33,565 thousand). The largest of them mm tha coniracts tor the construction of the secand
undarsoa electricity cable Estiink 2 betwean Eslania and Finland in 2011:2014. The caniribution of Elering is EEK
2,845 250 thousand.

As &t 31922010, the Compary had already concluded fwo long-larm (15-20 years) loan condracs in 1he total
mmound of EUR 100 milion (EEX1,564,880 thousand) for funding the commitmenis related 1o Esfink 2. Also, the
European Union has allocated non-retumable aid in the amount of EUR 50 million (EEX 782,330 thousand) lor the
corstruction of Estink 2, of which ELUR 15 million (EEK 234,500 thousand) had aiready boen pald oul io ihe
Company. The Company believes that fulure net income and funding will be sufficiant 1 cover these and any similar
COMiTatments.

Initslalisearitud alnult identifiteesrimmsehs

Indtialled for the purpose of Identification only
Initsiaalidfinitials .y
Kuupaovidate 05 Ao -
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Tax legialation. The tax authoriies have tha right 1o verily the Company's tax reconds up 1o 6 years from the time of
mhnmwwmmmmmmummw
managemant ssbmates that tham ars nol any circumsiances which may sad the o puthorities jo impose addibonal
significant taxes on fha Company,

Cther legal requiremanis which have an aifect en profilabiity:

Inmmhnlmnhwhmhmmldmmmwnm
Board, the network tardts are calculsed for aach year, using the known sleciricity fransmission ihroughput ower Ba
12 manghs priof 1o the tarll appcation. When e aciual bransmission throughput alls shor of tha budgsted one, the
Company will not receive & portion of revenus and compensation fof it Bud when the actual transmission fhroughput
turns out 1o be larger than that used in the caloulation, the Company does not need 1o repay the excess revenue in
tha lolicwing pariods.

Note 24. Events after tha Balance Sheel Date

Adopfion of the sura,

AL 01.01.2011, the Republic of Estonia jcined the Euro area and adopted the ewo as s national curency, replacing
the Estonian kroan. Thersfore, staring from 01.01.2011, the functional currency of Elaring AS is the euwo and the
statutory financial statements of fAulure penicds will be pressnied in surcs, The comparative figures will bo
recalculated inlo euros Lsing the conversion rate of EUR 1/ EEX 15,5485 which was also the fixed sxchange rate
during previous periods.

Transtormation of the Company into a public limited company,

Al Z5.02 2011, the Company's sola sharshoider proposed fo transtorm Elering AS info & public imited company. Tha
shans capital of e public limited company will consist of 140,000 shares with 1he nominal valus of EUR 1,000 ssch.
According 1o the resciution, the marmbers of the Managemant and Suparvasny Basrds and the audiior will remain B
sama. The alorementionsd iranalormalion aniry was macde with 1he Commascial Regisier on 0804 200 1.6
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Management Board of Elering AS (formerly Elering 00)
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Elering AS (the Company), set out in
Section ‘Financial Statements” of the prospectus of the Company (the Prospectus), which comprise the
statements of financial position as of 91 December 2010 and 31 December 2004, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and cash flow statements for the vears then
ended, and a summary of significant sccounting policies and other explanatory information.

These financial statements have been prepared by the Company for inclusion in the Prospectus in
accordance with Annex [X, item 11.1 of Commission Regulation (EC) No.80g9/2004 of 20 Aprl 2004
implementing Directive 2003/71/FC of the European Parliament and of the Council as regands
information contained in prospectuses as well as the format, incorporation by reference and
m_fm prospectuses and dissemination of advertisements (the “EU Prospectus

Management Board's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation, and true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control as the Management Board determines s necessary to
mﬁﬁ:dlhpnpmlﬂm of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to OF &rTor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Dur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our andit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance abont whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparstion, and troe and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectivensss of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well a2 svaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sofficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for
ounr audit opinion.

AS PricewaterhouseCoopers, Plirmu mnt 15, 1014 Tallinn, Estonia; Audir Compony’s Registration No,6
T: +g7a g 1800, Fr «372 614 1900, (0090, PLC.ss
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Declaration

For the purposes of Prospectus Rule 5.5-4R(2)(f) we are responsible for this report as part of the
Prospectus and we declare that we have taken all reasonable care to ensure that the information
contained in this report is, to the best of our knowledge, in accordance with the facts and contains no
amission likely to affect its import. This declaration is included in the Prospectus in compliance with
item 1.2 of Annex IX and item 1.2 of Annex X111 of the EU Prospectus Regulation.

AS PricewaterhouseCoopers

Ago Vilu Aleksei Kadérko

Auditor’s Certificate No.ges Anditor's Certificate Noss?
31 Mayzon

2 (2}
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Elering AS {Formarly Elering 00)
2008 and 2070 Annusi Report

Signatures of the Management to the 2008 and 2010 Annual Report
The sigring of Elering AS 2010 Annual Repor on A7 s’ & 2011,

/

[aaw Veslirr ,ﬁ’:

Chairman of the Mansgement Soard  Memier of the Management Board
Tasyi Vessimag Pees Sacre
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